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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

December 15, 2010

The Board of Directors

Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street

Orange, CA 92863

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010, in accordance with California state law. The financial
statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and were audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

Responsibility for complete and fair presentation of financial information,
including all disclosures, rests with OCTA’s management. A comprehensive
framework of internal control has been designed and implemented to ensure
that the assets of OCTA are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure
that accurate and complete financial information is compiled to allow for the
presentation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost
of internal control should not outweigh the benefits, OCTA’s system of internal
control has been designed to provide, reasonable rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

Mayer Hoffman McCann, P.C. has audited OCTA’s financial statements and
issued an unqualified (“clean”) opinion thereon for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2010. The independent auditors’ report is located at the front of the
financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of OCTA was also designed
to meet the broader, federally mandated Single Audit of federal grantee
agencies. A separately issued Single Audit Report of OCTA provides the
results of compliance with these federal requirements.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the
independent auditors’ report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and
analysis of the basic financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed
to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.

Orange CountyVTransportation Authority
550 South Main Street / PO. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)



Profile of OCTA

OCTA was established by state law and began serving the public on
June 20, 1991. An 18-member Board of Directors (Board) governs OCTA and
consists of five members of the Orange County Board of Supervisors, ten city
representatives selected by all of the cities within the County, two public
members selected by these 15 Board Members, and a representative appointed
by the Governor of California serving in a non-voting capacity. A Chief
Executive Officer manages OCTA and acts in accordance with the directions,
goals and policies approved by the Board.

The eleven agencies and funds consolidated to form OCTA include:
Orange County Transportation Commission

Orange County Transit District (OCTD)

Consolidated Transportation Services Agency

Orange County Local Transportation Authority

Orange County Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies
Orange County Congestion Management Agency

Service Authority for Abandoned Vehicles

State Transit Assistance Fund

Orange County Local Transportation Fund

Orange County Unified Transportation Trust

Transit Development Reserve

In January 1998, OCTA began regulating taxi operations on behalf of
participating Orange County cities through the Orange County Taxi
Administration Program (OCTAP). OCTAP simplified Orange County taxicab
regulations with centralized permitting of cab companies, drivers and vehicles.

On January 3, 2003, OCTA acquired the 91 Express Lanes, a ten-mile toll road
stretching along the Riverside Freeway (SR-91) between the Riverside/Orange
County Line and the Costa Mesa Freeway (SR-55). The toll road was built by a
public-private partnership. The partnership agreement included a non-compete
clause that limited public transportation agencies from increasing highway
capacity on other roads within one and one-half miles of the SR-91. OCTA’s
purchase of the 91 Express Lanes eliminated the non-compete clause, creating
possibilities for increasing highway capacity through the Santa Ana Canyon.

Annually, OCTA develops a balanced budget for the upcoming fiscal year. The
budget details the expected sources and uses of funds. The Board adopts the
budget before the beginning of each fiscal year. During the fiscal year, all major
budget revisions are presented to the Board for consideration and adoption. On
a quarterly basis, financial results are presented to the Board, including all
significant variances between actual performance and budget in the areas of
revenue, staffing, operating expenditures, and capital expenditures.



Orange County Economy

While the State of California continues to experience high rates of
unemployment, Orange County is performing better than other regions of the
State. Orange County’s unemployment rate of 9.6 percent in August 2010 is
significantly lower than the state’s 12.4 percent rate and the year-over-year
percentage change in Orange County’s employment is improving.

Orange County’s real estate sector is also showing signs of improvement in
2010. Housing affordability, new housing permits, and inventory of resale
homes are projected to have a positive impact on the market. Resale home
prices are projected to increase by five percent in 2010 compared to a
12.2 percent decrease in 2009. The inventory of unsold homes is also
decreasing compared to 2009.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, taxable sales decreased 3.6 percent.
OCTA, however, forecasts an increase of 1.1 percent growth for the year
ending June 30, 2011. This is a conservative forecast when compared to a
6.1 percent blended rate of increase provided by three local universities that
include California State University, Fullerton; Chapman University; and the
University of California, Los Angeles.

OCTA is also seeing additional indicators that suggest its funding is stabilizing.
A few examples include the reinstatement of California’s State Transit
Assistance Fund, increased usage of the 91 Express Lanes, and the allocation
of Proposition 1B and 116 funds by the California Transportation Commission.

Long-term Financial Planning

In an effort to ensure long-term sustainability of transportation programs and
services, OCTA developed a Comprehensive Business Plan (CBP), which is a
financially constrained 20-year blueprint utilizing conservative economic
assumptions. Using financial modeling and divisional input, a comprehensive
study of economic influences and programmatic needs and objectives are
incorporated into this planning document. The CBP validates the feasibility of
proposed program and service levels, anticipates a variable economic
environment, and identifies and proposes policy direction. The CBP is an
evolving document that is updated periodically in response to the ever-changing
social, political, and economic environment.

Relevant Financial Policies

OCTA utilizes several financial policies in guiding day-to-day operations and
ensuring long-term financial sustainability.  While there are overriding



agency-wide financial policies, some financial policies are program-specific. A
brief description of the major financial policies follows.

Budget Policy

OCTA’s Budget Policy articulates that an annual budget will be prepared in
accordance with the Comprehensive Business Plan, will be subject to a Public
Hearing, and expenses will be controlled at the “Major Object” level. The three
Major Objects for expenses at OCTA are: 1) salaries and benefits; 2) services
and supplies; and 3) capital/fixed assets.

Position Control Policy

Position Control includes the control, maintenance and reporting of OCTA’s
annual allocation of full-time equivalent (FTE) positions as approved by the
Board. The Position Control Policy ensures that OCTA does not employ more
FTE’s than approved by the Board and ensures that positions are filled at or
below the salary grades approved in the annual budget.

OCTD 45-Day Working Capital Policy

The Comprehensive Business Plan requires a 45-day working capital reserve
fund for transit operations. This reserve fund is in place to accommodate
normal fluctuations in revenues and expenditures and protects against
significant changes in funding or major expense items.

OCTD Fixed Asset Reserve Policy

Each year, OCTA sets aside operating funds derived from the Local
Transportation Fund (LTF) Yi-cent sales tax for the local match for capital
expenditures to support the transit system. The process of establishing the
set-aside involves analyzing available grant revenues and capital requirements
for the proceeding 20 years to determine the amount that needs to be set-aside
in the upcoming budget year.

91 Express Lanes Financial Policies

In managing the 91 Express Lanes, the Board has adopted a policy on the use
of “excess revenues” and the establishment of a capital replacement fund in
excess of what is required under the bond indenture. “Excess revenues” are
defined as total revenues less operating, capital, senior and subordinated debt
service payments, and reserve fund payments. After meeting all debt service
requirements, if additional revenues remain, these excess revenues may be
used to retire debt early.

Major Initiatives

In 1990, Orange County voters approved Measure M (M1), a 20-year, local
“2-cent sales tax that funded a package of transportation improvements. M1
allocated 43 percent of funds to freeway improvements, 32 percent to street
and road improvements, and 25 percent to transit programs. OCTA has been



successful in delivering on the promises of M1. As the program winds down
and expires in April 2011, the accomplishments of M1 are significant. Over $4
billion will have been strategically invested in Orange County’s transportation
infrastructure. In fall of 2010, the I-5 Gateway project in North Orange County
will be completed, representing the culmination of a complete overhaul of the
Orange County freeway network over the past 20 years. In that period, every
freeway in Orange County was widened and several chokepoints were
alleviated. The street and road network in Orange County has also been
maintained and improved, as over $1 billion has been allocated to local
jurisdictions.  Another significant accomplishment of M1 has been the
establishment and continued funding of Metrolink operations, a countywide
commuter rail program.

On November 7, 2006, Orange County voters renewed the Measure M (M2)
Y2-cent sales tax for an additional 30 years. The allocation of M2 funds remains
the same as the original M1 with 43 percent of the funds slated for freeway
improvements, 32 percent for streets and roads, and 25 percent for transit
projects and programs. Although the collection of M2 revenues will not begin
until April 2011, OCTA has already begun to deliver on the promises of M2. In
August 2007, the Board approved the M2 Early Action Plan. Under this five-
year plan, five M2 freeway projects will be under construction, with one project
entirely complete, before any revenue is collected. These projects have been
advanced using a tax-exempt commercial paper program. By borrowing funds
at attractive rates and leveraging state and federal funds, OCTA has been able
to start projects early. Early action on M2 projects serves the dual purpose of
providing immediate transportation solutions to Orange County commuters
while also creating or saving thousands of jobs during difficult economic times.
Additionally, OCTA has been able to take advantage of a very competitive
market where construction contracts have been executed at costs significantly
below engineering estimates.

M2 also provides significant funding to expand Metrolink service within Orange
County. Metrolink currently operates 44 trains each weekday. With a
sustained, 30-year funding commitment from M2, higher frequency, intra-county
Metrolink service is planned. In order to accommodate higher levels of service,
significant capital investment will be required. Utilizing a combination of local,
state, and federal revenue sources, a $420 million Metrolink Service Expansion
Program was approved by the Board in October 2005. As part of this program,
new rail cars will be purchased, stations upgraded, parking capacity added,
track capacity increased, and grade crossings enhanced. Construction for the
expanded service is expected to be complete in fiscal year 2010-11 with
additional service phased in shortly thereafter.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, OCTA completed a bus service
reduction program designed to match service levels with long-term revenue
projections. This reduction program was necessitated by declining sales tax



revenue, declining state funding, and reduced ridership. In total, 383,000 fixed
route revenue hours were eliminated, representing a 20 percent reduction in
fixed route service from peak levels. The reduction was 150,000 revenue hours
less than that approved in the fiscal year 2009-10 budget due to the mid-year
restoration of transit funding through the State Transit Assistance program. As
part of the State of California’s fiscal year 2009-10 budget, this program was
restored and is anticipated to resume in fiscal year 2011-12; however, OCTA
will spend reserves in fiscal year 2010-11 to sustain service levels until State
Transit Assistance resumes.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to OCTA for its CAFR for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This was the 27th consecutive year OCTA or
its predecessor agency received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded
a Certificate of Achievement, the government had to publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfied both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe the
CAFR for fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA,
expecting it to be eligible for another certificate.

The preparation of the CAFR required the dedication of staff in many OCTA
departments. We wish to express our appreciation to all staff members who
assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. Special appreciation
is extended to the Board for its support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of OCTA'’s finances.

Respectfully submitted,

Y, Ko

Will Kempton
Chief Executive Officer

onraa

Kenneth G. Phipps
Executive Director, Finance and Administration
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Board of Directors
Orange County Transportation Authority
Orange, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010,
which collectively comprise OCTA'’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of OCTA’s management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of OCTA as of June 30, 2010,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, of OCTA for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, OCTA changed the manner in which it accounts for
derivative instruments as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 53, as
described further in note 11 to the financial statements.

The information identified in the accompanying table of contents as Management’s Discussion
and Analysis and Required Supplementary Information are not a required part of the basic
financial statements, but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.



MHM

Board of Directors
Orange County Transportation Authority
Orange, California

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise OCTA'’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and statistical tables are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated
October 27, 2010 on our consideration of OCTA’s internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

‘/\wy'» 'ML l‘/\\-&‘"— (.

Irvine, California
October 27, 2010
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)

As management of the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA), we offer readers of OCTA’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of OCTA’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010. We encourage readers to consider the information on financial performance presented here in
conjunction with the transmittal letter on pages vx and OCTA’’s financial statements that begin on page 16. All
amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Total net assets of OCTA were $1,139,387 and consisted of net assets invested in capital assets, net of

related debt, of $511,591; restricted net assets of $323,824; and unrestricted net assets of $303,972.

e  Beginning net assets were restated $22,496 due to the implementation of GASB 53 and the recording of
the accumulated negative changes in fair value of the swap, sales tax revenue not accrued for in the prior
fiscal year and revenues recorded in the prior fiscal year that were not available to finance current year
expenditures (see note 18). Net assets decreased $114,415 during fiscal year 2009-10. The decrease in
net assets from governmental activities of $74,651 was attributable to governmental program costs in
excess of tax revenues. The decrease in net assets from business-type activities of $39,764 was related to
an increase in contracted services and expenses related to the Bristol Street widening project offset by a
decrease in investment earnings.

o Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, were $655,589 at June 30, 2010, representing a
decrease of $38,439, or 6%, over June 30, 2009. This decrease in capital assets was primarily due to the
retirement of diesel powered revenue vehicles and an increase in deprecation due to the purchase of
CNG vehicles in the previous fiscal year.

e OCTA’s governmental funds were restated $35,523 due to sales tax revenue not accrued for in the prior
fiscal year and revenues recorded in the prior fiscal year that were either not available to finance current
year expenditures or were not available for reimbursement (see note 18). OCTA’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $508,693, a decrease of $158,983 compared to fiscal year
2008-09. Approximately 73% of the governmental fund balances represent Local Transportation
Authority amounts available for the Measure M program, including debt service.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to OCTA’s basic financial statements. The
basic financial statements are comprised of three components: governmentwide financial statements, fund
financial statements and notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required supplementary
information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The governmentwide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of OCTA’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of OCTA’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between assets and liabilities reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of OCTA is improving or deteriorating.
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The statement of activities presents information showing how OCTA’s net assets changed during the fiscal year.
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of OCTA that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, or governmental activities, from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges, or business-type activities. The
governmental activities of OCTA include general government, the Measure M program, motorist services and
commuter rail. The business-type activities of OCTA include fixed route transit services, paratransit services,
tollroad operations and the taxicab administration program.

The government-wide financial statements include only OCTA and its blended component units. The
government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 16-17 of this report.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with financerelated legal requirements. All of OCTA’s funds can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the governmentwide financial statements; however, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources and on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements. As a result, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance
sheet and related statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

OCTA maintains 14 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
funds balance sheet and in the related statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for
OCTA’s major governmental funds comprised of the General fund; Local Transportation Authority (LTA),
Local Transportation Fund (LTF), and Commuter Urban Rail Endowment (CURE) special revenue funds; and
LTA Debt Service fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other nine governmental funds
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

OCTA adopts an annual budget for all funds. Budgetary comparison schedules have been provided for the
General fund and the LTA, Local Transportation Fund and CURE special revenue funds as required
supplementary information to demonstrate compliance with the annual appropriated budgets.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-21 of this report.
Proprietary funds consist of enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the

same functions presented as business-type activities in the governmentwide financial statements. OCTA uses
enterprise funds to account for its transit, tollroad and taxicab administration operations. Internal service funds
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are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally to the departments benefiting from
OCTA'’s risk management activities, which include general liability and workers’ compensation. Since these risk
management activities predominantly benefit business-type rather than governmental functions, they have been
included within business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the governmentwide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
Orange County Transit District (OCTD) and 91 Express Lanes, which are considered to be major enterprise
funds of OCTA. Data from the Bus Operations Fund and the Orange County Taxicab Administration Program
Fund are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Additionally, data from the General Liability and
Workers’ Compensation internal service funds are also combined into a single, aggregated presentation.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-28 of this report.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside OCTA. Fiduciary funds
are not reflected in the governmentwide financial statements, as the resources of those funds are not available to
support OCTA’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to that used for proprietary
funds. The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 29-30 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can
be found on pages 31-72 of this report.

Other information is in addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes. This report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning OCTA’s budgetary results for the General fund
and major special revenue funds with appropriated budgets. Required supplementary information can be found
on pages 73-77 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier relating to nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise
funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.
In addition, budgetary results for all other nonmajor governmental funds are located in this section. This other
supplementary information can be found on pages 79-102 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted previously, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. At
June 30, 2010, OCTA’s assets exceeded liabilities by $1,139,387, a $114,415 decrease from June 30, 2009. Our
analysis below focuses on net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2) of OCTA’s governmental and
business-type activities.

Approximately 45%, compared to 44% in 2009, of OCTA’s net assets reflect its investment in capital assets (i.e.,
toll facility franchise; land; buildings and improvements; machinery, equipment and furniture; transit vehicles;
and transponders), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire these assets. OCTA uses these capital assets
to provide transportation and transit services to the residents and business community of Orange County. The
increase of $4,362 in net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, from governmental activities was
primarily due to the purchase of land for the Metrolink Service Expansion Program (MSEP). The decrease of
$35,684 in net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, from business-type activities was primarily
related to the retirement of diesel powered revenue vehicles.

Restricted net assets, representing resources subjected to external restrictions on how they may be used, were
28% and 31% of the total net assets at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Restricted net assets from
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governmental activities decreased $62,244 as a result of program costs for the Measure M program exceeding
sales taxes and unrestricted investment earnings received. The increase in restricted net assets from business-type
activities of $864 is related to investment activity in bond reserve accounts.

Unrestricted net assets represent the portion of net assets that can be used to finance dayto-day operations
without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements. Unrestricted
net assets from governmental activities changed from $149,839 at June 30, 2009 to $133,070 at June 30, 2010.
This decrease was primarily due to the continued effort in the MSEP. The decrease of $4,944 in unrestricted net
assets from businesstype activities was primarily attributable to the implementation of GASB 53 and the
recording of a negative fair value of a derivative instrument and the transfer of funds from the Bus Operations
Fund to OCTD for operations.

Table 1
Orange County Transportation Authority
Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current and other assets, as
restated $646,064 $725,594  $255,625  $245,861 $901,689 $971,455
Restricted assets 73,069 72,602 38,854 37,990 111,923 110,592
Prepaid retirement 4,024 4,061 14,436 19,232 18,460 23,293
Land held for resale 6,623 5,667 - - 6,623 5,667
Capital assets 180,131 175,769 475,458 518,259 655,589 694,028
Total assets, as restated 909,911 983,693 784,313 821,342 1,694,284 1,805,035
Current liabilities, as restated 207,821 128,510 76,843 62,239 284,664 190,749
Long-term liabilities 85,284 163,726 184,949 196,758 270,233 360,484
Total liabilities, as restated 293,105 292,236 261,792 258,997 554,897 551,233
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 180,131 175,769 331,460 367,144 511,591 542,913
Restricted, as restated 303,605 365,849 20,219 19,355 323,824 385,204
Unrestricted, as restated 133,070 149,839 170,902 175,846 303,972 325,685
Total net assets $616,806 $691,457  $522,581  $562,345 $1,139,387 $1,253,802

OCTA’s total revenues decreased by 13%, while the total cost of all programs increased by 11%. The increase in
program costs is primarily due to the Interstate 5 (I-5) gateway project, the continuing effort to complete the
Combined Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) with cities due to the upcoming conclusion of the
Measure M1 program and the MSEP. Approximately 43% of the costs of OCTA’s programs were paid by those
who directly benefited from the programs or by other governments that subsidized certain programs with grants
and contributions. Taxes and investment earnings financed a significant portion of the programs’ net costs. The
analysis in Table 2 separately considers the operations of governmental and business-type activities.
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Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and
Contributions, as
restated
General revenues:
Taxes, as restated
Unrestricted invest-
ment earnings, as
restated

Other miscellaneous
revenue

Total revenues, as restated

Expenses:
General government
Measure M program
Motorist services
Commuter rail
Fixed route
Paratransit
Tollroad

Taxicab administration

Total expenses
Indirect expense
allocation
Increase (decrease) in net
assets before transfers,
as restated
Transfers
Changes in net
Assets, as restated
Net assets—beginning of
year, as restated
Net assets—end of year,
as restated

Table 2
Orange County Transportation Authority
Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
$1,129 $1,100 $ 98,918 $ 103,216 $ 100,047 $ 104,316
68,015 36,092 88,597 80,242 156,612 116,334
8,279 30,048 1,841 56,588 10,120 86,636
326,005 373,550 10,220 11,295 336,225 384,845
17,325 31,501 4,184 (2,704) 21,509 28,797
328 412 207 340 535 752
421,081 472,703 203,967 248,971 625,048 721,680
112,138 106,676 - - 112,138 106,676
302,851 222,731 - - 302,851 222,731
7,497 7,814 - - 7,497 7,814
29,395 27,009 - - 29,395 27,009
- - 210,526 224,538 210,526 224,538
- - 42,999 37,980 42,999 37,980
- - 33,713 38,224 33,713 38,224
- - 344 299 344 299
451,881 364,230 287,582 301,041 739,463 665,271
(31,187) (36,091) 31,187 36,091 - -
387 144,564 (114,802) (88,155) (114,415) 56,409
(75,038) (76,493) 75,038 76,493 - -
(74,651) 68,071 (39,764) (11,662) (114,415) 56,409
691,457 623,386 562,345 574,007 1,253,802 1,197,393
$616,806 $691,457 $ 522,581 $ 562,345 $1,139,387 $1,253,802
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GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Total revenues for OCTA’s governmental activities decreased $51,622 primarily due to a decrease in sales taxes
and unrestricted investment earnings due to the economic downturn, offset by an increase in capital grants and
contributions received to reimburse expenditures related to the MSEP and grade crossing projects. Total
expenses increased $87,651 primarily due to the -5 gateway project, the MSEP, and the CTFP.
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Revenues of OCTA’s business-type activities decreased $45,010 primarily due to the decrease in capital grants
and contributions due to the purchase of CNG and paratransit buses in the previous fiscal year. Total expenses
decreased $13,459 primarily due to the decrease in fixed route bus service due to the declining sales tax revenue
and reduced ridership, offset by higher contract costs for paratransit service.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF OCTA’s FUNDS

As noted earlier, OCTA uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal
requirements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The focus of OCTA’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances
of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing OCTA’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2010, OCTA’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $508,693, a
decrease of $158,983 compared to 2009. Approximately 13%, or $64,424, of this total amount constitutes
unreserved fund balance the majority of which is related to commuter rail. The remainder of fund balance is
reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because of the following commitments:

$1,682 deposited with the State for condemnation deposits;

$4,024 prepaid retirement;

$5,759 other assets;

$89,180 to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the current and prior periods;
$9,542 advance to the 91 Express Lanes to purchase the Toll Road;

$7,519 advance to Renewed Measure M to pay for expenditures and administrative costs;

$109,655 to pay debt service on Measure M sales tax revenue bonds issued in prior years to accelerate
funding for Measure M projects;

$207,897 for transportation programs primarily related to Measure M projects;

e  $9,011 for motorist services.

The significant changes in the fund balances of OCTA’s major governmental funds are as follows:

The General fund balance decreased by $2,257, primarily due to the receipt of State Transportation
Improvement Program funding transferred to OCUTT, the fund that advanced the State Route 91 (SR-91)
Major Investment study.

The Local Transportation Authority fund decreased by $128,137, primarily due to the I-5 gateway project, the
continuing effort to complete CTFP projects and the MSEP, offset by the restatement of beginning fund balance
due to recording the previous year’s sales tax accrual (see note 18).

The Commuter and Urban Rail Endowment (CURE) fund balance decreased by $27,826. This decrease was

primarily due to an increase in contributions to Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA) for
operations and capital due to the MSEP.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

OCTA’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the governmentwide financial
statements, but in more detail.

10
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Unrestricted net assets of the enterprise funds were $147,921 at June 30, 2010 compared to $167,227 at
June 30, 2009. The following are the significant changes in net assets of OCTA’s major proprietary funds:

The Orange County Transit District fund net assets decreased $28,819, primarily due to an increase in
contracted services and expenses related to the Bristol Street widening project.

The Bus Operations fund decreased $13,415 due to the transfer of funds to the OCTD for transit operations.
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUES

There were no changes in budgeted revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The primary sources of
revenues for the general fund are made up of federal, state, and local sources.

Actual revenues were less than the final budget by $12 million. The primary underrun in both capital assistance
grants and contributions from other agencies were strictly related to timing. Funds in these categories are
received on a reimbursement basis. Reimbursements are sought as expenses are incurred throughout the life of a
project. The projects contributing to the underruns are the Jeffrey Road Grade Separation project, the Video
Surveillance System for Metrolink stations, the Jobs Access and Reverse Commute program (JARC) and the New
Freedom Program. All of these projects are underway and reimbursement will be sought as expenses are
incurred. These projects were all re-budgeted in fiscal year 2010-11.

EXPENDITURES

During the fiscal year, the original budget increased by $3 million primarily due to amendments and transfers.
The amendments that impacted on the original budget were both related to the Costa Mesa Freeway Continuous
High Occupancy Vehicle Lane Access project. The transfer that contributed to the increase of the original
budget was a transfer of budget authority from the OCTD fund. This transfer was utilized to cover expenses
associated with the Public Agency Retirement Services supplementary retirement plan.

Actual expenditures were less than the final budget by $29.9 million. This was primarily due to project delays
arising from changes in scope and changes to plans involving multiple agencies for the following projects: Bristol
Street Widening, $5.5 million; JARC and New Freedoms programs, $4.8 million; Video Surveillance System,
$2.3 million; and the Jeffrey Road Grade Separation project, $2 million.

11
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of June 30, 2010, OCTA had $655,589, net of accumulated depreciation, invested in a broad range of capital
assets including: the 91 Express Lanes toll facility franchise, transit vehicles, land, buildings and machinery,
equipment and furniture (Table 3). The total decrease in OCTA’s capital assets for fiscal year 2009-10 was 6%,
which was comprised of a 2% increase in capital assets related to governmental activities and a 8% decrease in

capital assets related to business-type activities.

Table 3

Orange County Transportation Authority
Capital Assets, net of depreciation and amortization

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Land $ 173,337 $ 169,629 $ 55129 $ 55445 % 228466 $ 225,074
Buildings and

improvements 2,551 3,368 92,914 96,166 95,465 99,534

Transit vehicles - - 165,232 195,800 165,232 195,800
Machinery, equipment

and furniture 1,509 982 11,901 13,235 13,410 14,217

Toll facility franchise - - 150,282 157,613 150,282 157,613

Construction in progress 2,134 1,790 - - 2,134 1,790

Totals $ 180,131 $ 175,769 $ 475458 $ 518,259 % 655,589 $ 694,028

Major capital asset additions during 2010 included:

o  $4,082 for land purchased for the Metrolink Service Expansion Program
$2,080 for building improvements at various bus bases
$1,645 for communication equipment and information systems

Major capital asset deletions during 2010 included:

o $14,644 for disposal of revenue vehicles
e $1,014 for the retirement of various building improvements

More detailed information about OCTA’s capital assets is presented in note 8 to the financial statements.

OCTA has outstanding capital expenditure commitments, the most significant of which are: $40,560 for the
Bristol Street Widening project, $30,449 for the MSEP, $96,949 for grade crossing enhancements and safety
improvements and $20,124 for bus radio system replacement.

12
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of June 30, 2010, OCTA had $353,220 in bonds and commercial paper notes outstanding compared to
$386,140 at June 30, 2009, as presented in Table 4.

Table 4
Orange County Transportation Authority
Qutstanding Debt
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Sales tax revenue bonds $ 82,795 $ 161,200 $ - $ - $ 82,795 $ 161,200
Commercial paper notes 100,000 50,000 - - 100,000 50,000
Revenue refunding bonds - 170,425 174,940 170,425 174,940

Totals $ 182,795 $ 211,200  $170,425  $174,940 $ 353,220 $ 386,140

OCTA issued $50,000 in Renewed Measure M commercial paper notes; and retired $78,405 of sales tax revenue
bonds and $4,515 of revenue refunding bonds during fiscal year 2010.

OCTA maintains a “AAA” rating from Standard & Poor’s, a “AA” rating from Fitch and a “Aa2” rating from
Moody’s for its Measure M 1* Senior Sales Tax Revenue Bonds and a “AA” rating from Standard & Poor’s, an
“AA-” rating from Fitch and a “Aa3” rating from Moody’s for its Measure M 2™ Senior Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds. The Toll Road Revenue Refunding Bonds (91 Express Lanes) have ratings of “A1” by Moody’s, “A”
from Fitch, and “A” by Standard and Poor’s.

Additional information on OCTA’s shortterm debt, interest rate swaps and long-term debt can be found in
notes 10, 11 and 12 to the financial statements, respectively.

EcoNOMIC AND OTHER FACTORS

On June 14, 2010, OCTA’s Board of Directors (Board) adopted the fiscal year 2011 budget, a $1.2 billion
budget developed as OCTA emerges from the most severe economic decline in the agency’s history. Over the
last few years, OCTA has experienced unprecedented reductions in sales tax revenue, loss of state support for
transit operations and plummeting ridership. The Board took difficult measures to ensure OCTA remained a
responsible steward of limited taxpayer dollars while delivering long-term, sustainable transportation solutions
for the residents of Orange County. OCTA’s balanced budget reflects a successful navigation of troubling
financial times and represents a clear path to a sustainable future.

The fiscal year 2011 budget anticipates no further cuts in bus service following two straight years of reductions.
Stabilizing bus service was a direct result of the Board’s management of the fiscal crisis - including service
reductions, hiring and compensation freezes, benefit reductions, and the elimination of a number of
administrative positions. In addition, initial signs of financial recovery are beginning to emerge with a projected
growth in sales tax, infusion of state funding for transit and increases in 91 Express Lanes ridership.

A significant milestone will be realized in fiscal year 2010-11 with the sunset of the original Measure M (M1).
OCTA will conclude a successful program of delivering more than $4 billion in transportation improvements to
Orange County residents. The final major M1 freeway project - the -5 Gateway project - was completed in
September 2010 and will bring relief to thousands of daily commuters. As Measure M has delivered on its

13
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promises, the collection of sales tax under the renewed Measure M (M2) will get under way during the latter part
of the budget year.

Significant freeway projects will also begin construction in fiscal year 2010-11 as work kicks off on adding a lane
to two stretches of the Orange Freeway (SR-57) and the West County Connectors project, which will provide a
direct link between carpool lanes on the Garden Grove Freeway (SR-22) and the San Diego Freeway (I-405). In
addition, the M2 environmental mitigation program will begin and Metrolink users will see the long-awaited rail
service expansion get rolling between Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo and Fullerton.

Moving forward, OCTA’s Board, management, and employees will work diligently to develop solutions to
sustain and enhance our transportation network for the residents of Orange County.

CONTACTING OCTA’S MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of OCTA’s finances for all those with an interest
in the government’s finances and to show OCTA’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be
addressed to the Finance and Administration Division at the Orange County Transportation Authority, 550
South Main Street, P.O. Box 14184, Orange, California 92863-1584.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

(thousands)

Governmental Business-type

June 30, 2010 Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 534,677 218,478 $ 753,155
Receivables:

Interest 1,920 2,252 4,172

Operating grants 3,233 8,794 12,027

Capital grants 2,647 162 2,809

Other 111 10,284 10,395
Internal balances 9,197 9,197) -
Due from other governments 84,524 9,485 94,009
Condemnation deposits 1,682 - 1,682
Inventory - 6,560 6,560
Restricted cash and investments:

Cash equivalents 44,453 38,854 83,307

Investments 28,616 - 28,616
Prepaid retirement 4,024 14,436 18,460
Other assets 8,073 8,807 16,880
Assets held for resale 6,623 - 6,623
Capital assets, net:

Nondepreciable 176,071 55,129 231,200

Depreciable and amortizable 4,060 420,329 424,389

TOTAL ASSETS 909,911 784,373 1,694,284
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 27,196 20,294 47,490
Accrued payroll and related items 1,829 5,211 7,040
Accrued interest payable 1,755 8,910 10,665
Due to other governments 61,723 656 62,379
Unearned revenue 15,259 21,662 36,921
Other liabilities 59 438 491
Commercial paper notes 100,000 - 100,000
Derivative instrument liability - 19,672 19,672
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 85,171 17,798 102,969

Due in more than one year 113 167,151 167,264

TOTAL LIABILITIES 293,105 261,792 554,897
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 180,131 331,460 511,591

Restricted for:

Measure M program 184,772 - 184,772

Debt Service 109,655 6,877 116,532

Motorist services 9,178 - 9,178

Capital - 10,116 10,116

Other purposes - 3,226 3,226
Unrestricted 133,070 170,902 303,972

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 616,806 522,581 $ 1,139,387

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

(thousands) Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Indirect Operating Capital
Expense Charges for  Grantsand  Grants and Governmental Business-type
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Expenses Allocation Services  Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
General government $ 112,138 s (46,687) $ 121 $ 27,196 $ 5,559 $ (32,575) $ - $ (32,575)
Measure M program 302,851 14,281 434 32,777 - (283,921) - (283,921)
Motorist services 7,491 599 - 8,042 - (54) - (54)
Commuter rail 29,395 620 574 - 2,720 (26,721) - (26,721)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 451,881 (31,187) 1,129 68,015 8,279 (343,271) - (343,271)
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Fixed route 210,526 29,052 48,776 82,705 1,641 - (106,456) (106,456)
Paratransit 42,999 - 6,568 5,853 200 - (30,378) (30,378)
Tollroad 33,713 1,965 43,009 39 - - 7,370 7,370
Taxicab administration 344 170 565 - - - 51 51
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 287,582 31,187 98,918 88,597 1,841 - (129,413) (129,413)
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 739,463 s - $ 100,047 s 156,612 $ 10,120 (343,271) (129,413) (472,684)
GENERAL REVENUES:
Property taxes - 10,220 10,220
Sales taxes 326,005 - 326,005
Unrestricted investment earnings 17,325 4,184 21,509
Other miscellaneous revenue 328 207 535
TRANSFERS (75,038) 75,038
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 268,620 89,649 358,269
Change in net assets (74,651) (39,764) (114,415)
Net assets - beginning, as restated 691,457 562,345 1,253,802
NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 616,806 $ 522,581 §$ 1,139,387

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(thousands)

LTA Nonmajor Total
Local Debt Governmental ~Governmental
June 30, 2010 General LTA Transportation CURE Service Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 4,517 s 395,203 § 3,088 s 68,293 s 36,430 $ 27,146 $ 534,677
Receivables:
Interest 10 1,229 7 320 156 198 1,920
Operating grants 1,026 2,207 - - - 3,233
Capital grants 624 - - 2,023 - - 2,647
Other 77 13 - 12 - 9 111
Due from other funds 215 - - 5,029 - - 5,244
Due from other governments 4,978 60,926 16,336 2 - 2,282 84,524
Condemnation deposits - 1,682 - - - - 1,682
Advances to other funds - - - 9,542 - 7,519 17,061
Restricted cash and investments:
Cash equivalents - - - - 44,453 - 44,453
Investments - 28,616 - 28,616
Prepaid retirement 4,024 - - - - - 4,024
Other assets 436 1,174 - - - 4,149 5,759
TOTAL ASSETS $ 15,907 s 462,434 5 19,431 s 85,221 $ 109,655 $ 41,303 $ 733,951
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 3,408 s 22,465 $ - $ 706 $ - $ 617 $ 27,196
Accrued payroll and related items 1,829 - - - - - 1,829
Compensated absences 2,376 - - - - - 2,376
Due to other funds 5,029 184 - 31 5,244
Due to other governments 457 55,530 - 1,148 - 4,588 61,723
Deferred revenue 392 17,431 - 1,117 - 346 19,286
Other liabilities 38 21 - - - - 59
Advances from other funds - 7,519 - - - - 7,519
Commercial paper notes - 100,000 - - - - 100,000
Interest payable - 26 - - - - 26
TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,529 203,176 - 2,971 - 5,582 225,258
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Condemnation deposits - 1,682 - - - - 1,682
Prepaid retirement 4,024 - - - - - 4,024
Other assets 436 1,174 - - - 4,149 5,759
Encumbrances 6,296 68,481 - 314 - 14,089 89,180
Advances - - - 9,542 - 7,519 17,061
Debt service - - - - 109,655 - 109,655
Transportation programs - 187,921 19,431 - - 545 207,897
Motorist services - - - - - 9,011 9,011
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund (8,378) - - - (8,378)
Special revenue funds - - - 72,394 - 4,259 76,653
Capital projects funds - - - - - (3,851) (3,851)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 2,378 259,258 19,431 82,250 109,655 35,721 508,693
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 15,907 s 462,434 s 19,431 s 85,221 $ 109,655 $ 41,303 $ 733,951

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

(thousands)

June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (page 16) are different because:

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (PAGE 18) $

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,

are not reported in the funds.

Assets held for resale is not a financial resource and therefore is not reported in the funds.

Revenue that was earned but not collected within the availability period has not been

recognized in the governmental funds.

Other long-term assets related to costs of issuance and prepaid expenses are not available

to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore are deferred.

The effect of the elimination entries between the Governmental and the Business-type activities
and the Governmental activities share of the allocation of the profit and loss of the

Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund.

Interest payable on bonds outstanding is not due and payable in the current period

and therefore is not reported in the funds.

Other liabilities, including other postemployment benefits, are not due and payable in the

current period and are, therefore, not reported in the funds.

Longterm liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

508,693

180,131

6,623

4,027

2,313

(345)

1,729)

(52)

(82,855)

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (PAGE 16) $

616,806

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(thousands)

LTA Nonmajor Total
Local Debt Governmental ~Governmental
for the year ended June 30, 2010 General LTA Transportation CURE Service Funds Funds
REVENUES
Sales taxes $ - $ 221,855 % 80,177 $ - $ $ 23,973 % 326,005
Gasoline taxes - - - 23,000 23,000
Vehicle registration fees - - - 4,993 4,993
Fines 119 - 25 - 144
Contributions from other agencies 4,196 31,269 - 3,480 38,945
Interest and investment income/(loss) (112) 12,219 42 3,405 783 830 17,167
Capital assistance grants 4,453 - 2,720 482 7,655
Miscellaneous 171 3,117 549 112 3,949
TOTAL REVENUES 8,827 268,460 80,219 6,699 783 56,870 421,858
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 9,883 65,459 1,399 18,964 151 6,041 101,897
Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies 26,604 193,355 3,518 10,825 25,321 259,623
Capital outlay 855 54,302 226 1,079 56,462
Debt service:
Principal payments on long-term debt - - - 78,405 78,405
Interest on longterm debt and
commercial paper - 403 - 9,018 9,421
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 37,342 313,519 4,917 30,015 87,574 32,441 505,808
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (28,515) (45,059) 75,302 (23,316) (86,791) 24,429 (83,950)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 29,339 6,524 - 1,126 87,428 3,949 128,366
Transfers out (3,086) (89,602) (73,572) (5,636) (5,241) (26,267) (203,404)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 5 - - 5
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 26,258 (83,078) (73,572) (4,510) 82,187 (22,318) (75,033)
Net change in fund balances 2,257 (128,137) 1,730 (27,826) (4,604) 2,111 (158,983)
Fund balancesbeginning - as restated 4,635 387,395 17,701 110,076 114,259 33,610 667,676
FUND BALANCES-ENDING $ 2,378 % 259,258 $ 19,431 $ 82,250 $ 109,655 $ 35,721 $ 508,693

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

(thousands)

for the year ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 17) are different because:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (PAGE 20)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation and amortization expense. This is the amount by which

capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Transfer of the completion of the SR22 HOV project to Caltrans.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales,

trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.

Prepaid expenses are recorded in the fund statements as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of the asset is amortized over the life of the asset.

This amount is the net between the prepaid amount and the amortization.

Prior year deferred revenues received in the current year are reported as revenues in the funds

and are not reported in the statement of activities.

The issuance of longterm debt (e.g., bonds) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has an
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect

of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

The effect of the elimination entries between the Governmental and the Business-type activities
and the Governmental activities share of the allocation of the profit and loss of the

Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (PAGE 17)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

(thousands)

Enterprise Funds

Total
91 Express Nonmajor Enterprise Internal
June 30, 2010 OCTD Lanes Enterprise Funds Funds Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 125,952 % 41,241 $ 14,027 $ 181,220 $ 37,258
Receivables:

Interest 484 1,180 366 2,030 222

Operating grants 8,794 - - 8,794 -

Capital grants 162 - - 162 -

Violations, net - 6,694 - 6,694 -

Farebox 1,011 - - 1,011 -

Other 1,312 722 - 2,034 545
Due from other governments 9,472 - 12 9,484 1
Inventory 6,560 - - 6,560 -
Prepaid retirement 14,399 - 37 14,436 -
Other assets - 339 - 339 1,265

Total current assets 168,146 50,176 14,442 232,764 39,291

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments:

Cash equivalents - 38,854 - 38,854 -
Unamortized debt issuance costs - 2,906 - 2,906 -
Net pension asset 4,297 - - 4,297 -
Capital assets, net:

Nondepreciable 55,129 - - 55,129 -

Depreciable and amortizable 264,927 155,402 - 420,329 -

Total noncurrent assets 324,353 197,162 - 521,515 -
TOTAL ASSETS 492,499 247,338 14,442 754,279 39,291

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS, CONTINUED

(thousands)

Enterprise Funds

Total
91 Express Nonmajor Enterprise Internal
June 30, 2010 OCTD Lanes Enterprise Funds Funds Service Funds
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 15,274 4,506 $ 11 3 19,791 $ 503
Accrued payroll and related items 5,200 - 11 5,211 -
Accrued interest 45 8,865 - 8,910 -
Claims payable - - - - 3,341
Due to other governments 614 42 - 656 -
Unearned revenue 17,538 4,122 2 21,662 -
Other liabilities 3 332 - 335 103
Current portion of
long-term liabilities 9,702 4,740 15 14,457 -
Total current liabilities 48,376 22,607 39 71,022 3,947
Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances from other funds - 9,542 - 9,542 -
Claims payable - - - - 12,677
Derivative instrument liability - 19,672 - 19,672 -
Long-term liabilities 2,942 151,532 - 154,474 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,942 180,746 - 183,688 12,677
TOTAL LIABILITIES 51,318 203,353 39 254,710 16,624
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 313,664 17,765 - 331,429 -
Restricted for:
Debt service - 6,877 - 6,877 -
Capital - 10,116 - 10,116 -
Other purposes - 3,226 - 3,226 -
Unrestricted 127,517 6,001 14,403 147,921 22,667
ToTAL NET ASSETS 441,181 43,985 $ 14,403 $ 499,569 $ 22,667

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS OF PROPRIETARY FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

(thousands)

June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net assets (page 16) are different because:

TOTAL NET ASSETS (PAGE 23) $

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of risk
management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the general liability
and workers' compensation internal service funds are included in business-type activities.
Additionally, the effect of the elimination entries between the Governmental and
the Business-type activities and the Governmental activities share of the allocation

of the profit and loss of the Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund.

499,569

23,012

NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (PAGE 16) $

522,581

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

24



2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

(thousands)

Enterprise Funds

Total
91 Express Nonmajor Enterprise Internal
for the year ended June 30, 2010 OCTD Lanes Enterprise Funds Funds Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
User fees and charges 51,680 $ 43,009 $ - 94,689 $ -
Permit fees 565 565 -
Charges for services - 6,139
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 51,680 43,009 565 95,254 6,139
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Wages, salaries and benefits 124,023 232 124,255 -
Maintenance, parts and fuel 20,336 - 20,336 -
Purchased services 47,598 6,350 - 53,948 -
Administrative services 28,862 1,965 170 30,997 190
Other 1,936 423 2 2,361 130
Insurance claims and premiums 3 381 - 384 5,557
Professional services 15,481 3,672 131 19,284 1,742
General and administrative 5,022 540 5 5,567 -
Depreciation and amortization 37,375 9,072 46,447 -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 280,636 22,403 540 303,579 7,619
Operating income (loss) (228,956) 20,606 25 (208,325) (1,480)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Gas tax exchange 23,000 - 23,000 -
Federal operating assistance grants 65,182 39 65,221 -
Property taxes allocated by the County of Orange 10,220 - - 10,220 -
Investment earnings 5,494 1,542 628 7,664 1,302
Investment loss on derivative instrument - (4,781) (4,781) -
Interest expense (371) (13,275) (13,646) -
Other 3,080 85 1 3,166 616
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 106,605 (16,390) 629 90,844 1,918
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (122,351) 4,216 654 (117,481) 438
Capital contributions 2,216 - 2,216 -
Transfers in 116,752 - 1 116,753 -
Transfers out (25,436) (1,283) (14,000) (40,719) (996)
Change in net assets (28,819) 2,933 (13,345) (39,231) (558)
Total net assets - beginning, as restated 470,000 41,052 217,748 538,800 23,225
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING 441,181 $ 43,985 $ 14,403 $ 499,569 $ 22,667

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

FUND NET ASSETS OF PROPRIETARY FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

(thousands)

for the year ended June 30, 2010

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities (page 17) are different because:
NET CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS - TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS (PAGE 25) $ (39,231)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of risk
management to individual funds. The net revenue of the general liability and workers'
compensation internal service funds are included in business-type activities in the
statement of net assets. Additionally, the effect of allocating the workers' compensation

Internal Service Fund loss to the Governmental activities. (533)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES (PAGE 17) $ (39,764)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

(thousands)

Enterprise Funds
91 Express Nonmajor Internal
for the year ended June 30, 2010 OCTD Lanes Enterprise Funds Totals Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users $ 50,542 $ 42,922 $ 570 $ 94,034 $
Receipts from interfund services provided - - - - 6,122
Payments to suppliers (88,092) (11,403) (139) (99,634) (1,991)
Payments to claimants 3) - - 3) (10,059)
Payments to employees (123,608) - 237 (123,845) -
Payments for interfund services used (28,862) (1,965) (170) (30,997) (190)
Advertising revenue received 2,966 - 2,966
Miscellaneous revenue received 810 85 1 896 616
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (186,247) 29,639 25 (156,583) (5,502)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Gas tax exchange received 22,186 - 22,186
Federal operating assistance grants received 86,964 39 87,003
Property taxes received 10,220 - 10,220
Transfers from other funds 119,551 - 1 119,552 -
Transfers to other funds (28,603) (1,283) (14,000) (43,886) (996)
Repayment of advances from other funds - (17,000) (17,000)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 210,318 (18,244) (13,999) 178,075 (996)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Federal capital grants for acquisition and
construction of capital assets 10,150 - 10,150
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 504 - 504
Principal payment on long-term debt (3,417) (4,514) (7,931)
Interest paid on long-term debt (395) (8,264) (8,659)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (3,605) (1,250) (4,855)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 3,237 (14,028) (10,791)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment earnings 5,441 1,395 0695 7,531 1,342
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 5,441 1,395 0695 7,531 1,342
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 32,749 (1,238) (13,279) 18,232 (5,156)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 93,203 81,333 27,306 201,842 42,414
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR $ 125952 % 80,095 $ 14,027 $ 220,074 37,258
NONCASH CAPITAL, FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in interest expense incurred on advances from other funds - 1,226 1,226
Increase in investment loss on derivative instrument - 4,781 4,781
Amortization of bond premium - 252 252
Amortization of bond deferred charges - 1,068 1,068

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS, CONTINUED

(thousands)

Enterprise Funds

91 Express Nonmajor Internal
for the year ended June 30, 2010 OCTD Lanes Enterprise Funds Totals Service Funds
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ (228,956) $ 20,606 $ 25 % (208,325) $ (1,480)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation expense 37,375 1,741 39,116 -
Amortization of franchise agreement - 7,331 7,331 -
Amortization of cost of issuance - 142 - 142 -
Amortization of prepaid retirement 13,624 - 34 13,658 -
Advertising revenue 2,976 - 2,976 -
Miscellaneous 809 85 1 895 -
Insurance recoveries - - 616
Change in assets and liabilities:
Other receivables (543) (48) 17 (574) (161)
Due from other governments - - (12) (12) -
Inventory 895 - - 895 -
Prepaid retirement (13,125) - (34) (13,159) -
Other assets - 30 - 30 55
Accounts payable 643 (251) 1 393 (163)
Accrued payroll and related items 234 - - 234 -
Compensated absences (319) - ) (324) -
Claims payable - - - - (4,369)
Due to other governments 138 42 2) 178 -
Unearned revenue 1 (24) (23) -
Other liabilities 1 (15) (14) -
Total adjustments 42,709 9,033 51,742 (4,022)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (186,247) $ 29,639 $ 25 % (156,583) $ (5,502)
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 125,952 $ 41,241 $ 14,027 $ 181,220 $ 37,258
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 38,854 - 38,854 -
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 125,952 $ 80,095 $ 14,027 $ 220,074 $ 37,258

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

(thousands)

Scholarship ARBA

June 30, 2010 Trust Fund Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents held in OCTA pool 6$ -
Cash and cash equivalents held in OCERS pool - 167
Investments at fair value:

Mututal Funds - 7,190
Accounts receivable 1 p

TOTAL ASSETS 7 7,357
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for future scholarships 7 -
Held in trust for pension benefits - 7,357

TOoTAL NET ASSETS 7% 7,357

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

(thousands)

Scholarship ARBA
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Trust Fund Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer contributions $ - $ 916
Private donations 20 -
Total contributions 20 916
Investment income:
Investment income 1 375
Less investment expense - 18
Net investment income 1 357
TOTAL ADDITIONS 21 1,273
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits - 638
Scholarships 17 -
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 17 638
Change in net assets 4 635
Net assets - beginning 3 6,722
NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 7% 7,357

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2010 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1)

(THOUSANDS)

JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REPORTING ENTITY

On June 20, 1991, under the authority of Senate Bill 838, the Orange County Transportation Authority
(OCTA) was formed as a special district by merging the following agencies and funds:

Orange County Transportation Commission (OCTC)

Orange County Transit District (OCTD)

Orange County Local Transportation Fund (LTF)

Orange County Unified Transportation Trust (OCUTT)

Transit Development Reserve

Orange County Local Transportation Authority (LTA)

State Transit Assistance Fund (STAF)

Orange County Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE)
Orange County Service Authority for Abandoned Vehicles (SAAV)
Orange County Consolidated Transportation Services Agency (CTSA)
Orange County Congestion Management Agency

On January 3, 2003, OCTA purchased from the California Private Transportation Company (CPTC) its
interest in a franchise agreement for a toll facility on a 10 mile segment of the Riverside Freeway/State
Route (SR) 91 between the Orange/Riverside County line and the Costa Mesa Freeway/SR 55. The
purchase was enabled by State Assembly Bill 1010 (Correa), passed by the California legislature and
signed by the governor in September 2002. The legislation provided the authority for OCTA to collect
tolls and pay related financing costs until 2030, and eliminated noncompete provisions in the franchise
agreement for needed improvements on SR 91. The franchise agreement with the State of California’s
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) had granted CPTC the right to develop and construct the toll
facility and to operate it for 35 years under a lease arrangement. Caltrans retains legal title to the real
property components of the toll facility.

The OCTA governing board (Board) consists of 17 voting members. Five members are the Orange
County Board of Supervisors, ten members are city representatives (one per supervisorial district selected
by population-weighted voting, and one per supervisorial district selected on a one-city, one-vote method),
two public members (neither of whom can be an elected official or have been an elected official during
the previous four years), and one is a non-voting ex-officio member appointed by the governor (Caltrans
District Director).

The Orange County Local Transportation Authority (LTA), a blended component unit of OCTA, was
created pursuant to the provisions of the Local Transportation Authority and Improvement Act
commencing with Section 180000 of the California Public Utilities Code and pursuant to Ordinance No.
2, adopted by the Board of Directors of the LTA on August 2, 1989. The Board also serves as the Board
of Directors for the LTA. Separate financial statements are prepared and available from the OCTA
Finance and Administration Division.
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2010 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(THOUSANDS)

JUNE 30, 2010

The Orange County Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE), a blended component unit of
OCTA, was created by Senate Bill 1199 which authorized the County Board of Supervisors, upon
approval from a majority of the cities with a majority of the population, to establish SAFE. In 1986,
SAFE began the implementation and operation of a freeway system of call boxes to help with motorist
emergencies. SAFE is funded by a $1.00 fee paid at the time of vehicle registration. The OCTA Board
also serves as the Board of Directors for SAFE. Separate financial statements are not issued for SAFE.

The Orange County Service Authority for Abandoned Vehicles (SAAV), a blended component unit of
OCTA, was created by Senate Bill 4114 which authorized the County Board of Supervisors, upon
approval from a majority of the cities with a majority of the population, to establish SAAV. In 1992,
SAAV began funding cities’ effort to remove unsightly and potentially dangerous abandoned vehicles.
SAAYV is funded by a $1.00 fee paid at the time of vehicle registration. The OCTA Board also serves as
the Board of Directors for SAAV. Separate financial statements are not issued for SAAV.

The Orange County Transit District (OCTD), a blended component unit of OCTA, was created by an act
of the California State Legislature in 1965 and approved by the voters of Orange County in November
1970. OCTD commenced operating a public transportation system in Orange County in August 1972.
OCTD is primarily funded by a one quarter of one percent sales tax. The OCTA Board also serves as the
Board of Directors for OCTD. Separate financial statements are not issued for OCTD.

The Orange County Transit District Financing Corporation (Corporation), a blended component unit of
OCTA, was formed as a nonprofit corporation to provide financial assistance to OCTD by acquiring,
constructing, financing and refinancing various facilities, land and equipment. The OCTA Board also
serves as the Board of Directors for the Corporation. Separate financial statements are not issued for the
Corporation.

The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for
which OCTA is considered accountable. A blended component unit, although a legally separate entity,
is, in substance, part of the government’s operations.

There are many other governmental agencies, including the County of Orange (County), providing service
within the area served by OCTA. These other governmental agencies have independently elected
governing boards and are, therefore, not under the direction of OCTA. Financial information for these
agencies is not included in the accompanying financial statements.

OCTA is funded primarily by sales taxes, farebox collections, tolls, property taxes, gasoline sales tax and
various federal and state grant programs. OCTA oversees most Orange County bus and rail transit and
the 91 Express Lanes tollroad operations, administers the Measure M program (one-half percent sales tax
revenues), coordinates freeway and regional road projects, and serves as the local advocate and facilitator
of state and federal transportation funding programs.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
OCTA’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net
assets and a statement of activities and fund financial statements that provide a more detailed level of

financial information.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities report
information for all of the nonfiduciary activities of OCTA. The effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Indirect costs have been allocated to the functions/programs on the
statement of activities in a separate column entitled “Indirect Expense Allocation.” Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on charges and fees for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the program expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Program expenses include direct expenses, which are clearly identifiable with
a specific function. Interest expense related to the sales tax revenue bonds and commercial paper, the
capital lease, and the taxable bonds and advances from OCTA funds is reported as a direct expense of the
Measure M program, fixed route, and tollroad functions, respectively, as it would be misleading to exclude
the interest from direct expenses and the borrowings are considered essential to the creation or
continuing existence of these programs. For the year ended June 30, 2010, interest expense of $7,771,
$371 and $13,275, was included as Measure M, fixed route, and tollroad program costs, respectively.
Program revenues include: charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
services or privileges provided by a given function and grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Sales taxes and other revenues
are not reported as program revenues and instead, are reported as general revenues.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: The fund financial statements provide information about OCTA’s
funds, including its fiduciary funds, though the latter are excluded from the governmentwide financial
statements. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds,
each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated
and reported as nonmajor funds.

OCTA reports the following major governmental funds:

. GeneErAL FUnD — The General Fund is the general operating fund of OCTA. It is used to
account for the financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

. LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (LTA) Funp — This fund accounts for revenues
received and expenditures made for the implementation of the Orange County Traffic
Improvement and Growth Management Plan (Measure M). Financing is provided by a one-half
percent sales and use tax assessed for twenty years pursuant to Measure M, which became
effective April 1, 1991, and more recently was renewed for an additional 30 years from April 1,
2011 to March 31, 2041. The Measure M ordinance, as approved in an election by the voters of
Orange County, requires that sales tax revenues only be expended on projects included in the
ordinance.

. LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND (LTF) — This fund accounts for revenues received and
expenditures made for use on certain transit projects within Orange County. Financing is
generated from a onequarter percent state sales and use tax pursuant to the California
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Transportation Development Act (TDA). Expenditures of these monies must be made in
accordance with TDA provisions.

. COMMUTER AND URBAN RAIL ENDOWMENT (CURE) Funp — This fund accounts for
OCTA’s share of the Metrolink commuter rail operations in Orange County. Funding for
CURE was provided through actions of the Board.

o LTA DeBT SeErvice FUND — This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments
made for principal and interest on long-term debt of the LTA.

OCTA reportts the following major enterprise funds:

. ORANGE COUNTY TRANSIT DisTrRICT (OCTD) Funp — This fund accounts for the transit
operations of OCTA. The primary sources of funding for transit operations are the TDA one-
quarter percent sales tax, farebox collections, gas tax exchange and federal grants.

. 91 Express LANEs Funp — This fund accounts for the operations of the 91 Express Lanes.
The primary source of funding for the operations is toll revenues and related fees.

Additionally, OCTA reports the following fund types:

. INTERNAL SErRvICE FUNDS — These funds account for the risk management activities of
OCTA, which are managed through a combination of purchased insurance and self-insurance.
The internal service funds are:

General Liability
Workers' Compensation

. ADDITIONAL RETIREE BENEFIT ACCOUNT (ARBA) TrRusT FUND — This fund accounts for
the resources legally held in trust for additional retiree benefits. Employees who retiree from
OCTA with 10 years or more of service receive an additional $10 per month for each year of
service up to $150 per month.

. PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND — This fund accounts for the resources legally held in trust
for providing scholarships and supporting activities for other organizations’ special programs.

MEASUREMENT FOCus AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The governmentwide and the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Tolls are collected from customers on a prepaid basis, and unearned tolls are reported as unearned
revenue. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the grantor have been met. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which
they are levied.
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, OCTA
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 180 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred; however, principal and interest
expenditures on long-term debt and compensated absences of governmental funds are recorded only
when payment is due.

Revenues susceptible to accrual are sales and gas taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf
of OCTA, intergovernmental revenues, interest revenue, charges for services and fines and fees. In
applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, there are two types of
revenues. For one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any amounts will
be paid to OCTA; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures incurred. In the
other, monies are unrestricted and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed
compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the
susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, are
followed in both the governmentwide and enterprise fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). OCTA has elected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance for its business-type
activities and enterprise funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of OCTA’s proprietary funds are charges
to customers for services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is OCTA’s policy to use restricted
resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

OCTA maintains cash and investments in accordance with the Annual Investment Policy (AIP) adopted
by the Board on May 8, 1995, and most recently amended April 26, 2010. The AIP complies with, or is
more restrictive than, applicable state statutes. The majority of OCTA’s investments are managed by four
private sector investment managers. At June 30, 2010, the investment portfolios were held by Union
Bank as custodial bank. Separate investment manager accounts are maintained for the proceeds of bond
issues, with the earnings for each bond issue accounted for separately. Cash from other OCTA revenue
sources is commingled for investment purposes, with investment earnings allocated to the different
accounts based on average daily account balances.
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Investments in U.S. government and U.S. agency securities, repurchase agreements, variable and floating
rate securities, mortgage and asset backed securities, and corporate notes are carried at fair value based on
quoted market prices, except for securities with a remaining maturity of one year or less at purchase date,
which are carried at cost. Certain investment agreements are carried at cost while others are carried at fair
value. Treasury mutual funds are carried at fair value based on each fund’s share price. The Orange
County Investment Pool (OCIP) is carried at fair value based on the value of each participating dollar as
provided by the OCIP. The state managed Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is carried at fair value
based on the value of each participating dollar as provided by LAIF. Commercial paper is carried at
amortized cost (which approximates fair value).

The AIP requires that assets in the portfolio consist of the following investments, with maximum
permissible concentrations based on book value, and is more restrictive than applicable state statutes for
the following investment types:

OCTA NOTES AND BONDS (25%)

COMMERCIAL PAPER (25%)

e Must be rated by two of the three rating agencies at the following level or better: P-1 by Moody’s
Investor Service (Moody’s), A-1 by Standard & Poor’s Corporation (S & P) or F-1 by Fitch
Ratings (Fitch).

e Must be issued by corporations rated A- or better by S & P, A3 or better by Moody’s or A- or
better by Fitch, with further restrictions to issuer size.

e Maximum Term: 180 days.

NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT (30%)

e Must be issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank or state or federal association, or be a state
licensed branch of a foreign bank, which has been rated by at least two of the Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations.

o  The issuer must have minimum credit ratings of A-1 by S & P, P-1 by Moody’s, F1 by Fitch.

¢ Maximum Term: 270 days.

BANKERS ACCEPTANCE (30%)

e Must be rated by at least two of the Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations with
minimum credit ratings of A-1 by S & P, P-1 by Moody’s, F1 by Fitch and may not exceed the 5%
limit by any one commercial bank.

e Maximum Term: 180 days.

MORTGAGE OR ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES (20%)

e Must be rated AAA by S & P, Aaa by Moody’s, or AAA by Fitch.
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e The issuer must have an A or better rating by S & P, A2 or better by Moody’s or A or better by
Fitch or an equivalent rating by a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization
recognized for rating service for its long-term debt.

¢ Maximum Term: Five year stated final maturity.
REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS (75%)

e Must be collateralized at one hundred and two percent (102%).

¢ Reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending are not permitted.

¢ Maximum Term: 30 days.

MEDIUM-TERM NOTES (30%)

o Corporate securities which are rated A- or better by S & P, A3 or better by Moody’s or A- by
Fitch or an equivalent rating by two of the three Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating
Organizations.

e Medium term notes must not represent more than ten percent (10%) of the issue in the case of a
specific public offering. Under no circumstance may any one corporate issuer represent more

than 5% of the portfolio.

¢  Maximum Term: 5 years.

Other allowable investment categories include money market funds, mutual funds and LAIF. LAIF is
regulated by California Government Code (Code) Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of
the State of California. Investment is also allowed in the OCIP, but is limited to those funds legally
required to be deposited in the County Treasury. Oversight of the OCIP is performed by the County
Treasury Oversight Committee.

All investments are subject to a maximum maturity of five years, unless specific direction to exceed the
limit is given by the Board and as permitted by the Code.

OCTA policy is to invest only in high quality instruments as permitted by the Code, subject to the
limitations of the AIP.

Outside portfolio managers must review, on an ongoing basis, the portfolios they manage (including bond
proceeds portfolios) to ensure compliance with OCTA's diversification guidelines.

o Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines apply to all securities except federal agencies,
government sponsored enterprises, investment agreements, repurchase agreements and 91 Express
Lanes Debt — any one corporation, bank, local agency, special purpose vehicle or other corporate
name for one or more series of securities (5%).
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o Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines for federal agencies, government sponsored
enterprises and repurchase agreements — any one federal agency or government sponsored enterprise
(35%); any one repurchase agreement counter-party name if maturity/term is < 7 days (50%), with a
maturity/term of > 7 days (35%).

o Issuer/Counter-Party Diversification Guidelines for OCTA’s 91 Express Lanes Debt - OCTA may
purchase all or a portion of the Orange County Transportation Authority’s Toll Road Revenue
Refunding Bonds (91 Express Lanes) Series B Bonds maturing December 15, 2030 providing the
purchase does not exceed 25% of the Maximum Portfolio.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, OCTA considers all shortterm investments with an initial
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. All deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit
represent cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds involving goods
provided or services rendered. There are also numerous transfers of revenues from funds authorized to
receive the revenue to funds authorized to expend it. Outstanding interfund balances, including internal
financing balances, are reported as due to/from other funds. Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the governmentwide financial
statements as “internal balances.”

As a centralized transportation planning and administration agency, OCTA allocates costs related to
administrative services from certain funds to benefiting funds. For the 2009-10 fiscal year, $46,846 of
administrative services were charged to other OCTA funds from the general fund. These charges for
services are reported as general government expenditures in governmental fund types and as
administrative services expenses in the proprietary fund types.

Internal service funds are utilized by OCTA to account for risk management activities in the areas of
general liability and workers’ compensation. Charges for risk management services are reported as general
government expenditures in the governmental funds receiving the services and as wages, salaries and
benefits or other operating expenses in the proprietary funds. The risk management internal service

funds charged $6,139 to OCTA’s operating funds.

INVENTORY

All inventory is valued at cost using the average cost method.

PREPAID RETIREMENT

Orange County Employee Retirement System (OCERS) provides a 7.75 percent discount to employers for
early payment of employer contributions. OCTA elected to prepay employer contributions for fiscal year
2010-11 in order to benefit from this discount.
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RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Certain proceeds of OCTA’s long-term debt, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment and
capital maintenance, are classified as restricted investments, because they are maintained in separate
investment accounts and their use is limited by applicable debt covenants.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets include the toll facility franchise, land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and furniture,
vehicles, and transponders and are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the governmentwide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by OCTA as assets with
an initial, individual cost of more than $5 and a useful life exceeding of one year. OCTA also capitalizes
transponder purchases, as they are considered a significant class of assets even though individually their
cost is less than $5. Assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Freeway construction and certain purchases of right-ofway property, for which title vests with Caltrans,
are included in capital outlay. Infrastructure consisting primarily of freeway construction and rightof-way
acquisition is not recorded as a capital asset in those instances where OCTA does not intend to maintain
or operate the property when complete.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or materially extend
an asset’s life are not capitalized.

Buildings, machinery, equipment and furniture, vehicles, and transponders are depreciated using the
straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

ASSET TYPE USEFUL LIFE

Buildings and improvements 10-30 years

Machinery, equipment and 3-10 years
furniture

Transit vehicles 3-12 years

Transponders 5 years

The toll facility franchise is amortized over the remaining life of the franchise agreement through

December 2030.

ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE

OCTA holds title to property in connection with the purchase of rights-ofway for infrastructure not held
by OCTA (see above). These assets are reported as assets held for resale in the governmental activities
column in the governmentwide financial statements. These assets will be sold and proceeds will be
reimbursed to the fund in which the initial expenditure was recorded.
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COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Vacation hours accumulated and not taken are accrued at fiscal year-end, and a liability is reported in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Vacation leave in governmental funds that is
due and payable at year-end is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund
that will pay it.

Sick leave is recorded as an expenditure or expense when taken by the employee. Employees may elect to
be paid for sick leave accumulated in excess of 120 hours, and this cost is recorded when paid during
December. Sick leave in excess of 120 hours is accrued at fiscal year-end, and a liability is reported in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Sick leave in governmental funds that is due
and payable at year-end is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that
will pay it. Upon termination, an employee with over 10 years of service is paid any earned but unused
sick leave up to a ceiling determined by the employee’s applicable union agreement or the personnel and
salary resolution.

LONG-TERM DEBT

In the governmentwide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt is
reported as a liability in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund
type Statement of Net Assets. Bond premiums and discounts and bond refunding costs, as well as
issuance costs and deferred amounts on refundings, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the straightline method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount and deferred bond refunding charges. Bond issuance costs are reported as other assets and
amortized over the life of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, in the current period. The face amount of debt is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

INTEREST RATE SWAPS

As a means of lowering borrowing costs on variable rate debt, compared to fixed rate bonds at the time of
issuance in November 2003, OCTA entered into two parity interest rate swaps totaling $100,000. The
parity swaps effectively changed OCTA’s variable rate bonds to a synthetically fixed rate of 4.06227%.
These agreements are recorded at fair value. Changes in fair value of these derivative instruments affect
investment earnings or losses. As of June 30, 2010, these hedging derivatives of OCTA are considered
ineffective.

RISK MANAGEMENT

OCTA accounts for its risk management activities in internal service funds. Separate internal service
funds are used for general liability and workers’ compensation. Charges by internal service funds to the
general fund, certain special revenue funds, OCTD and OCTAP enterprise funds are based on historical
cost information and are adjusted over time, so that internal service fund revenues and expenses are
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approximately equal. Expenses for the actual or estimated loss from claims are recorded when it is
probable that a loss will be incurred and the amount can reasonably be determined. OCTA’s risk
management activities are a combination of purchased insurance coverage and selfinsured risk retention.
OCTA’s real and personal property, including revenue and non-revenue vehicles, are covered under a
commercial property insurance policy. The 91 Express Lanes enterprise fund has purchased commercial
property insurance, including business interruption, earthquake and flood coverage related to the toll

facility.
PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are allocated to OCTA from the County based upon a percentage of real property taxes
levied by the County. Following is the property tax calendar:

Lien Date January 1

Levy Date 4™ Monday in September
Due Dates November 1 and February 1
Collection Dates December 10 and April 10

CONTRIBUTIONS TO OTHER AGENCIES

Contributions to other agencies primarily represent sales tax revenues received by LTA disbursed to cities
for competitive projects, the turnback program and to other outside agencies for projects which are in
accordance with the Measure M ordinance. Additionally, gas tax monies are transferred to local
governmental agencies in exchange for nonrestricted funds.

NET ASSETS

In the governmentwide financial statements, net assets represent the difference between assets and
liabilities and are classified into three categories.

. INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF RELATED DEBT — This balance reflects the net
assets of OCTA that are invested in capital assets, net of related debt. These net assets are
generally not accessible for other purposes.

. RESTRICTED NET AsseTs — This balance represents net assets that are not accessible for
general use because their use is subject to restrictions enforceable by third parties. The
government-wide statement of net assets reports $323,824 of net assets restricted by enabling
legislation.

. UNRESTRICTED NET AsseTs — This balance represents those net assets that are available for
general use.
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FUND EQUITY

In the fund financial statements, governmental and enterprise funds report reservations of fund balance
or net assets for amounts not available for appropriation or legally restricted by outside parties for a
specific purpose.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. As such, actual results could differ from those

estimates.

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT=-WIDE AND FunND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE
SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the governmentwide
statement of net assets.

One element of that reconciliation explains that “Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $180,131 difference
are as follows:

Capital assets $ 188,896
Less accumulated depreciation (8,765)
NET ADJUSTMENT TO INCREASE FUND BALANCE — TOTAL

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO ARRIVE AT NET ASSETS —
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $180,131

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “Longterm liabilities, including bonds payable, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of
this ($82,855) difference are as follows:

Bonds payable $ (82,795)
Less deferred charge on refunding (to be amortized as interest expense) 337
Plus unamortized bond issuance premium (to be amortized to interest expense) (351)
Compensated absences (46)

NET ADJUSTMENT TO DECREASE FUND BALANCE — TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO ARRIVE AT NET ASSETS —
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $(82,855)
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EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net
assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.

One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation and amortization expense.”

The details of this $5,367 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $ 5,961
Depreciation expense (594)
NET ADJUSTMENT TO INCREASE NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE —

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO ARRIVE AT CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
— GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $5,367

Another element of that reconciliation states that “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of longterm debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities.” The details of this $79,996 difference are as follows:

Principal repayments - sales tax revenue bonds $ 78,405
Change in accrued interest 1,635
Amortization of deferred charge on refunding (336)
Amortization of premium 351
Amortization of issuance costs (59)

NET ADJUSTMENT TO INCREASE NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES —
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO ARRIVE AT CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
— GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 79,996

DiIVERsION oF TDA FUNDING

In September 1995, as a result of and to assist the County of Orange in recovering from its December
1994 bankruptcy, the California State Legislature adopted legislation diverting $38,000 annually to the
County from OCTA’s TDA sales tax revenue. In return, $23,000 in annual County gasoline tax revenue
is being diverted to OCTA. Diversion from OCTA of the TDA revenue began on July 1, 1996, for a 15
year period. Diversion to OCTA of the gasoline tax revenue began on July 1, 1997, for a 16 year period.
The net result of this diversion is a loss of revenue to OCTA of $202,000. As all anticipated bankruptcy
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litigation settlements have occurred and been distributed to Orange County Investment Pool participants,
OCTA does not anticipate recovery of this loss.

OCTA entered into agreements with nine Orange County cities and the Southern California Regional
Rail Authority (SCRRA) effective July 1, 1997 to exchange the gasoline tax funds for flexible funding
from each agency. OCTA has successfully exchanged funds for 13 years as of June 30, 2010.

(4) CAsH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2010:

DEPOSITS:
Deposits $ 25798
Petty Cash 6
TOTAL CASH 25,804
INVESTMENTS:
With Orange County Treasurer 3,088
With LAIF 54
With Trustee 176,424
With Custodian 667,071
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 846,637
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $872,441
Total deposits and investments are reported in the following funds:
UNRESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS:
Governmental Funds $ 534,677
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise 181,220
Internal Service 37,258
Fiduciary Funds 7,363
RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS:
Governmental Funds 73,069
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise 38,854
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $872,441

Restricted investments at June 30, 2010, represent reserves for debt service, capital and other purposes.
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As of June 30, 2010, OCTA had the following investments:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEIGHTED
INTEREST AVERAGE
FAIR RATE MATURITY MATURITY
INVESTMENT VALUE PRINCIPAL RANGE RANGE (YEARS)
Orange County $ 3,088 $ 3,091 .24%-.51% 52-58 days 58 days or
Investment Pool .15
Local Agency Investment 54 54 5.28% - 202-235 days 203 days or
Fund 1.377% .55
U. S. Treasuries 260,936 257,766 Discount, 8/05/10- 1.94
.15%- 5/31/15
5.125%
U. S. Agency Notes 169,490 168,420 Discount, 8/12/10- 1.93
.875% - .6% 7/28/14
Medium Term Notes 144,743 143,511 1.375%- 8/16/09- 2.27
8.875% 6/17/15
Mortgage and Asset 66,859 66,338 Discount, 9/17/10- 2.56
Backed Securities 37%-6.07% 4/20/15
Money Market & Mutual 105,695 105,695 Variable 7/1/10 1 Day
Funds
Variable Rate Notes 6,100 6,001 0% 12/2/10- 1.68
6/19/13
Investment Agreements 29,227 15,955 Discount, 8/15/10- 1.62
3.877% 2/15/11
Repurchase Agreements 22,105 22,105 .05% 7/1/10 1 day
Commercial Paper 14,999 14,999 .30% 7/8/10 .02
Negotiable Certificates of 23,341 23,342 .010%-.15% 7/1/10- .02
Deposit 7/15/09
TOTAL INVESTMENTS $846,637 $827,337
PORTFOLIO WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY 1.61

INTEREST RATE RISK

OCTA manages exposure to declines in fair value from increasing interest rates by having an investment

policy that limits maturities to five years while also staggering maturities.

OCTA maintains a low

duration strategy, targeting an estimated average portfolio duration of three years or less, with the intent
of reducing interest rate risk. Portfolios with low duration are less volatile, therefore, less sensitive to
interest rate changes. In accordance with the OCTA investment policy, amounts restricted for debt
service reserves are invested in accordance with the maturity provision of their specific indenture, which

may extend beyond five years.
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As of June 30, 2010, mortgage and asset-backed securities totaled $66,860. The underlying assets are
consumer receivables that include credit cards, auto and home loans. The securities have a fixed interest
rate and are rated AAA by at least two of the three Nationally Recognized Rating Services Organizations.

As of June 30, 2010, OCTA had the following variable rate notes:

COUPON RESET

INVESTMENT FAIR VALUE  COUPON MULTIPLIER DATE
American Express Credit Corp $ 936 LIBOR + 170 basis Monthly
Bank America Corp 1,007 LIBOR + 20 basis points Quarterly
Berkshire Hathaway 600 LIBOR + 12.5 basis Quarterly
Citigroup Inc 423 LIBOR + 33 basis points Quarterly
Goldman Sachs 1,005 LIBOR + 25 basis points Quarterly
Paccar Financial Corp 629 LIBOR + 45 basis point Monthly
Wachovia Bank NA 1,500 LIBOR + 7 basis points Quarterly
TOTAL VARIABLE RATE
NOTES $ 6,100

OCTA is invested in two pay-fixed, receivevariable interest rate swaps with a notional amount totaling
$100,000. OCTA makes semiannual fixed payments to the counterparty of 4.06227% and receives
monthly variable payments based on 67 percent of LIBOR if LIBOR is equal to or greater than 4.0% or
the SIFMA Index if LIBOR is less than 4.0%. These interest rate swaps were executed in November 2003
and mature in December 2030. At June 30, 2010, these interest rate swaps had a negative fair value of

$19,672.

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government
will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. OCTA’s investment policy requires that a third party bank custody department hold all
securities owned by OCTA. All trades are settled on a delivery versus payment basis through OCTA’s
safekeeping agent. At June 30, 2010, OCTA did not have any deposits or securities exposed to custodial
credit risk and there was no securities lending.

CREDIT RISK

The AIP sets minimum acceptable credit ratings for investments from any of the three nationally
recognized rating services S & P, Moody’s, and Fitch. For an issuer of short-term debt, the rating must be
no less than A-1 (S & P), P-1 (Moody’s), or F-1 (Fitch), while an issuer of long-term debt shall be rated no
less than an “A” by two of the three rating services. LAIF is not rated.

The following is a summary of the credit quality distribution and concentration of credit risk by
investment type as a percentage of each pool’s fair value at June 30, 2010. (NR means Not Rated, US
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means obligation of the United States (U.S.) government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U. S.

government):
INVESTMENTS S&P MoobyY’s FITCH % OF
Orange County Investment Pool AAAmM NR NR .36%
Local Agency Investment Fund NR NR NR 0.01%
U. S. Treasuries Us Us UsS 30.82%
U. S. Agency Notes AAA Aaa AAA 20.02%
Medium Term Notes A A A 17.10%
Mortgage and Asset Backed AAA Aaa AAA 7.90%
Money Market and Mutual Funds AAA Aaa NR 12.48%
Variable Rate Notes A A A 12%
Investment Agreements NR NR NR 3.45%
Repurchase Agreements aaa aaa aaa 2.61%
Commercial Paper A-l P-1 F1+ 1.77%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit AA Aa2 AA 2.76%
TOTAL 100%

Lehman Brothers Commercial Bank, the counterparty for the pay-fixed interest rate swap Series 2003-B-1
was rated NR by S & P, withdrawn (WR) by Moody’s, and NR by Fitch. JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
the counterparty for the payfixed interest rate swap Series 2003-B-2 was rated AA- by S & P, Aal by
Moody’s, and AA- by Fitch.

As of June 30, 2010, OCTA held one investment in Lehman Brothers Holding Inc. Medium Term Notes.
The investment had a $1,000 par maturing on January 24, 2013. On September 15, 2008, Lehman

Brothers Holding Inc. filed for bankruptcy. As of June 30, 2010, the market value of the security was
20.25% of par.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
At June 30, 2010, OCTA did not exceed the AIP limitation that states that no more than:
= 5% of the total market value of the pooled funds may be invested in securities of any one issuer,

except for federal agencies, government sponsored enterprises, investment agreements, repurchase
agreements and 91 Express Lanes debt.

= 20% may be invested in any money market mutual fund.

The AIP limitation excludes investment agreements pursuant to the bond indenture. OCTA had the
following investment agreements outstanding at June 30, 2010:

INVESTMENT AGREEMENTS AMOUNT
FSA Capital Management Services LLC $ 10,248
U.S. Treasury Notes Coupon Components 18,979
TOTAL INVESTMENT AGREEMENTS $ 29,227
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INVESTMENT IN STATE INVESTMENT POOL

The OCTA is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair
value of the OCTA’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon OCTA’s prorata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is
based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

GRANTS AND STATE ASSISTANCE
OPERATING ASSISTANCE GRANTS

Under provisions of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and the TDA, funds are available to
OCTD for Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) paratransit operating assistance, demonstration
projects, transportation planning, and acquisition and construction of facilities, transit vehicles and
related support equipment. For fiscal year 2009-10, OCTA was awarded $8,709 in operating assistance

and had a receivable of $12,027 outstanding as of June 30, 2010.
CAPITAL GRANTS

Under the provisions of a 1979 amendment to the TDA and the provisions of FTA, appropriations are
available for the development and operation of a public transportation system. For fiscal year 2009-10,
OCTA was awarded $61,045 in capital grants and had a receivable of $2,809 outstanding as of
June 30, 2010.

ARRA GRANTS

For fiscal year 2009-10, OCTA received $76,802 in American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA)
grants. There are no ARRA grants outstanding.

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND

In fiscal year 2009-10, LTF received revenues from a one-quarter percent state sales and use tax through
provisions of the TDA, as amended. Under TDA, monies are to be made available to OCTD for
acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and for operating expenses. In fiscal year 2009-10, OCTA
and OCTD became entitled to $2,966 and $69,943 in LTF monies, respectively. This revenue was
recorded as a transfer from LTF to OCTD. The remaining revenues received by LTF were contributed to
other agencies for use in transit projects and OCTA planning. An additional $38,000 in TDA revenue
was diverted to the County under provisions of bankruptcy recovery legislation passed by the California
State legislature in September 1995 (see Note 3), and, accordingly, is not recorded in the financial
statements.
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STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gasoline tax is allocated to each county based on demographic factors. In fiscal year 2009-10, the State
allocated $23,489 to OCTA which is recorded in STAF. STAF transferred $24,426 to OCTD during
fiscal year 2009-10. This was recorded as a transfer from STAF to OCTD.

PROPOSITION 1B

As part of the State of California’s Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security
Bond Act of 2006, approved by California voters as Proposition 1B (Prop 1B) on November 7, 2006,
OCTA was been awarded funding from the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and
Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) and the Transit System Safety, Security and Disaster Response
Account (TSSSDRA). During fiscal year 2009-10, OCTA received $26,309 in PTMISEA funding. As of
June 30, 2010, OCTA has unspent Prop 1B proceeds and interest of $25,973 and $3,133 in PTMISEA
and TSSSDRA funds, respectively.

(6)

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Amounts due from other governments as of June 30, 2010 are as follows:

INTERNAL

ENTERPRISE SERVICE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FUNDS FUNDS

NONMAJOR NONMAJOR GENERAL
RECEIVABLES: GENERAL LTA LTF CURE FUNDS OCTD FUNDS LIABILITY TOTAL
Sales taxes $ $ 42071 $ 16,336 $ - $ - $ $ $ $58,407

Project

reimbursements 4,967 18,279 1,259 1,231 25,736
Gas tax exchange - - - - 6,713 - - 6,713
Other 11 576 2 1,023 1,528 12 1 3,153
ToTAL $ 4,978 $60,926 $ 16,336 $ 2 $ 2,282 $ 9,472 $ 12 $ 1 $94,009
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The composition of interfund balances at June 30, 2010 is as follows:

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Due to/from other funds:

RECEIVABLE FUND PAYABLE FUND AMOUNT EXPLANATION

General Fund LTA $ 184 Project study report for the
1-405 widening project

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental 31 Management fee

CURE Fund General Fund 5,029 Fund negative balance

ToTAL $5,244

Advances to/from other funds:

RECEIVABLE FUND PAYABLE FUND AMOUNT EXPLANATION

CURE Fund 91 Express Lanes Fund $ 9,542 91 Express Lanes purchase

Nonmajor Governmental Funds LTA 7,519 Measure M2 expenses

TOTAL

$17,061

In connection with the purchase of the toll facility franchise, to fund the debt service payment required
on February 15, 2003, and to establish operations, the 91 Express Lanes Fund borrowed $83,641 from
other OCTA funds at an interest rate, adjusted each January, representing OCTA’s rate of return on
short-term investments (4.66% at June 30, 2010). Interest accrues monthly, and the advance from other
OCTA funds plus accrued interest will be repaid by the 91 Express Lanes Fund on an on-going basis from
net revenues. On June 30, 2010, the 91 Express Lanes repaid $17,000 of the advance from net revenues.
At June 30, 2010, these advances were $9,542 and are reported as interfund balances.

Interfund Transfers:

TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFERS IN

AMOUNT

EXPLANATION

General Fund

LTA Fund

LTA Fund

LTA Fund

Local Transportation Fund
Local Transportation Fund
Local Transportation Fund
CURE Fund

CURE Fund

LTA Debt Service Fund

Nonmajor Governmental
General Fund

LTA Debt Service Fund
OCTD Enterprise Fund
General Fund

OCTD Enterprise Fund
Nonmajor Governmental
General Fund

OCTD Enterprise Fund

LTA Fund

50

$ 3,086
184
87,428
1,990
2,966
69,943
663

155

5,481

5,241

Transportation projects

Transportation projects

Debt service

Fare stabilization

OCTA planning

OCTD and CTSA operations

ADA bus stops

Transportation projects

Stationlink and Rail feeder service

and reimbursement of grant funds

Excess debt service available for
Measure M program
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TRANSFERS OUT TRANSFERS IN AMOUNT EXPLANATION
Nonmajor Governmental General Fund 515 Transportation projects and
Funds Management fees
Nonmajor Governmental OCTD Enterprise Fund 24,426 OCTD operations and capital
Funds purchases
Nonmajor Governmental Nonmajor Governmental 200 Automated Vehicle Locator and
Funds Funds Mobile Data Terminal system
Nonmajor Governmental CURE 1,126 Close the Urban Rail Fund to the
Funds Commuter Rail Fund
OCTD Enterprise Fund General Fund 25,436 Bristol Street Widening and Discovery
Science Center Project
91 Express Lanes Fund LTA Fund 1,283 Transportation projects
Nonmajor Enterprise funds OCTD Enterprise Fund 14,000 OCTD Operations
Internal Service Funds General Fund 83 Excess Workers’ Compensation
Internal Service Funds OCTD Enterprise Fund 912  Excess Workers’ Compensation
Internal Service Funds Nonmajor Enterprise Fund 1 Excess Workers’ Compensation
$245.119

(8) CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

BEGINNING ENDING
BALANCE INCREASES DECREASES BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 169,629 $ 4082 $ 374 $ 173,337
Construction in progress 1,740 994 - 2,734
Construction in progress held for
Department of Transportation 50 - 50 -
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 171,419 5,076 424 176,071
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 5,049 - 698 4,351
Machinery, equipment and furniture 8,585 885 996 8,474
Total capital assets, being depreciated 13,634 885 1,694 12,825
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (1,681) (235) (116) (1,800)
Machinery, equipment and furniture (7,603) (359) 997) (6,965)
Total accumulated depreciation (9,284) (594) (1,113) (8,765)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 4,350 291 581 4,060
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL
ASSETS, NET $175,769 $ 5,367 $ 1,005 $180,131
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated and amortized:

Buildings and improvements
Transit vehicles
Machinery, equipment and furniture
Toll facility franchise

Total capital assets, being depreciated
and amortized

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization for:
Buildings and improvements
Transit vehicles
Machinery, equipment and furniture
Toll facility franchise

Total accumulated depreciation and
amortization

Total capital assets, being depreciated
and amortized, net

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Measure M program
Motorist services

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE — GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Business-type activities:
Fixed route
Paratransit

Tollroad

TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE — BUSINESS-TYPE

ACTIVITIES

BEGINNING ENDING
BALANCE  INCREASES DECREASES BALANCE
$ 55,445 - $ 316 $ 55,129
55,445 - 316 55,129
146,104 2,140 698 147,546
328,578 293 14,644 314,227
65,328 24121 1,333 66,416
205,264 - - 205,264
745,274 4,854 16,675 733,453
(49,938) (5,192 (498) (54,632)
(132,778) (30,171) (13,954) (148,995)
(52,093) (3,753) (1,331) (54,515)
(47,651) (7,331) - (54,982)
(282,460) (46,447) (15,783) (313,124)
462,814 (41,593) 892 420,329
$518,259 $ (41,593) $1,208 $475,458

$ 525

66

3

$594

$ 32,626

4,749

9,072

$46,447
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R1SK MANAGEMENT =~ CLAIMS LIABILITY

OCTA is selfinsured for workers' compensation and general liability claims, and also purchases excess
workers’ compensation and general liability insurance. Workers’ compensation claims are insured up to a
maximum amount of $500 per claim. General liability claims in excess of a $4,000 self-insured retention
are insured up to an additional $35,000 per occurrence. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance
coverage in any prior fiscal years. Because actual claim liabilities depend on such complex factors as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liability
may not result in an exact amount. General liability and workers’ compensation reserves are actuarially
determined. Claims liabilities are re-evaluated periodically to take into consideration recently settled
claims, the frequency of claims and other economic and social factors. Management is of the opinion
that the recorded liabilities for OCTA’s self-insured claims are adequate.

OCTA'’s liability for claims where it has retained the risk of loss, as recorded in the appropriate internal
service funds, is as follows:

2010 2009
GENERAL LIABILITY

UNPAID CLAIMS AS OF JULY 1 $ 9,689 $ 5,337
Incurred claims (including claims incurred but not reported as of
June 30):

Provision for current year events 434 456

Increase/(Decrease) in provision for prior years’ events (705) 4,936
Total incurred claims 271) 5,392
PAYMENTS:
Claims attributable to current year events 107 242
Claims attributable to prior years’ events 3,792 798
Total payments (3,899) (1,040)
Unpaid claims at June 30, 5,519 9,689

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

UNPAID CLAIMS AS OF JULY 1 10,698 9,994
Incurred claims (including claims incurred but not reported as of
June 30):

Provision for current year events 2,001 1,554

Increase/(Decrease) in provision for prior years’ events 2,449 2,991
Total incurred claims 4,450 4,545
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2010 2009
PAYMENTS:
Claims attributable to current year events 972 589
Claims attributable to prior years’ events 3,677 3,252
Total payments (4,649) (3,841)
Unpaid claims at June 30 10,499 10,698
Total unpaid claims at June 30 16,018 20,387
Less current portion of unpaid claims 3,341 4,792
TOTAL LONG-TERM PORTION OF UNPAID CLAIMS $12,677 $15,595

SHORT-TERM DEBT

On January 28, 2008, LTA was authorized to issue up to $400,000 in Renewed Measure M Subordinate
Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper Notes Series A and Series B (M2 Notes). As a requirement for the
issuance of the M2 Notes, OCTA entered into an irrevocable direct-pay Letter of Credit and
Reimbursement Agreement, issued on a several and not joint basis, with Dexia Credit Local, Bank of
America, N.A., BNP Paribas, and JP Morgan Chase Bank, National Association as liquidity support for
the M2 Notes.

As of June 30, 2010, LTA had outstanding M2 Notes in the amount of $100,000. Interest is payable on
the respective maturity dates of the M2 Notes, which are the earlier of 270 days from date of issuance or
program termination. The maximum allowable interest rate on the M2 Notes is 12.0%. The average
issuance rate during fiscal year 2009-10 was 0.36%.

CHANGES IN SHORT-TERM DEBT

Shortterm debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

BEGINNING ENDING

BALANCE ISSUED REDEEMED BALANCE

Tax exempt commercial paper -M2 $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ - $ 100,000
TOTAL SHORT-TERM DEBT $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $- $ 100,000

INTEREST RATE SWAPS

INTEREST RATE SWAPS

As a means to lower its borrowing costs, when compared against fixed rate bonds at the time of issuance
in November 2003, OCTA entered into two parity interest rate swaps totaling $100,000 in connection
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with its $195,265 Toll Road Revenue Refunding Bonds. The effective rate on the parity swaps was to
effectively change OCTA’s variable rate bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 4.06227%. $95,265 was issued
on a fixed rate basis and $100,000 was issued on a variable rate basis. The Series 2003-B-1 swap was for
$75,000 and the counterparty is Lehman Brothers Special Funding Incorporated (Lehman Brothers). The
Series 2003-B-2 swap was for $25,000 and the counterparty was Bear Stearns Capital Markets
Incorporated (Bear Stearns). On May 30, 2008, JP Morgan completed its acquisition of The Bear Stearns
Companies Incorporated. As a result of the merger, JP Morgan assumed the $25,000 interest rate swap
between OCTA and Bear Stearns Capital Markets Incorporated.

On November 23, 2005, Lehman Brothers Holding Inc. named Lehman Brothers Commercial Bank as
the counterparty for the interest rate swap, replacing Lehman Brothers Special Financing Inc. On
September 15, 2008, Lehman Brothers Holding Inc. filed for bankruptcy. As of the date of this report,
Lehman Brothers Commercial Bank had not declared bankruptcy.

On October 2, 2008, OCTA provided a Notice of Event of Default and Reservation of Rights letter to
Lehman Brothers Special Financing and Lehman Brothers Commercial Bank regarding the rating
downgrade and the missed counterparty payment. Since Lehman Brother's Event of Default, OCTA has
not remitted payment to Lehman Brothers as part of the swap agreement. OCTA continues to work with
general counsel and bond counsel to determine the impact of the bankruptcy on OCTA’s interest rate
swap.

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2010, and
the changes in fair value of such derivative instruments for the year then ended are as follows:

CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE FAIR VALUE AT JUNE 30, 2010

CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT NOTIONAL

Investment derivatives -
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps

Series 2003- Investment Loss $ (3,586) Investment $(14,754) $75,000
Series 2003- Investment Loss (1,195) Investment (4,918) 25,000
TOTAL $(4,781) $(19,672) $100,000

As of the beginning of the fiscal year, OCTA determined that the pay-fixed interest rate swaps classified as
investment derivative instruments did not meet the criteria for effectiveness. Accordingly, a prior period
adjustment has been made to record the accumulated negative changes in fair value of the swap of

$14,890 at June 30, 2009. The decrease in the fair value of the swaps in fiscal year 2010 of $4,781

reported as investment loss on derivative instruments for the year ended June 30, 2010.

The fair values of the interest rate swaps were estimated using proprietary methodologies developed by
DerivActiv, LLC. The methods and significant assumptions used by DerivActiv to estimate the fair values
have not been made available to OCTA.

TERMS

The bonds and the related parity swap agreements mature on December 15, 2030. The parity swaps
notional amount of $100,000 matches the $100,000 variable rate bonds. The parity swaps were entered
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into at the same time the bonds were sold (November 2003). Starting in fiscal year 2022, the notional
amount of the parity swaps declines and the principal amount of the associated variable rate declines an
identical amount. Under the parity swaps, OCTA pays the counterparties a fixed payment of 4.06227%
and the counterparties pay OCTA a floating rate equal to 67% of one month London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR) index if one month LIBOR index is equal to or greater than 4.0% or the Securities
Industry Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) Index if LIBOR is less than 4.0%.

FAIR VALUE

As of June 30, 2010, the negative fair value for the $75,000 swap with Lehman Brothers was estimated by
DerivActiv, LLC to be $14,754. As of June 30, 2010, the negative fair value for the $25,000 swap with JP
Morgan was estimated by DerivActiv, LLC to be $4,918. Therefore, if the swaps were terminated on June
30, 2010, OCTA would have made a termination payment of $14,754 and $4,918 to Lehman Brothers
and JP Morgan, respectively. The termination payments that would have been owed by OCTA if the
swaps were terminated on June 30, 2010 are a result of the change in interest rate levels and certain
interest rate relationships. The rate used to calculate the fixed swap payment owed by OCTA to the swap
providers is 4.06227%. As of June 30, 2010, this fixed rate was higher than the current rate for a swap of
identical terms and conditions. The fair values were estimated using proprietary methodologies. OCTA’s
swaps do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under the criteria established by GASB 53.
Accordingly, the change in the fair value of the swaps is reported as an element of investment income in
the accompanying financial statements.

CREDIT RISK

To mitigate the potential for credit risk, the $75,000 swap with Lehman Brothers and the $25,000 swap
with JP Morgan require collateralization with U.S. government securities at all times if a termination
payment is required. Due to declining interest rates declined since the swaps were executed, the
counterparties did not owe OCTA a termination payment as of June 30, 2010.

The aggregate fair value of derivative instruments at June 30, 2010 was $(19,672). This represents the
maximum loss as of that date that would be recognized at the reporting date if the swaps were terminated.

Lehman Brothers Commercial Bank, the counterparty for the pay-fixed interest rate swap Series 2003-B-1
was NR by S & P, withdrawn (WR) by Moody’s and NR by Fitch. JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., the
counterparty for the payfixed interest rate swap Series 2003-B-2 was rated AA- by S & P, Aal by Moody’s
and AA- by Fitch.

INTEREST RATE RISK

OCTA is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest rate swaps. On its payfixed, receivevariable interest
rate swap, as LIBOR or the SIFMA swap index decreases, OCTA’s net payment on the termination of the
swap increases.

BASIS RISK

Basis risk is the risk that the variable rate paid to a borrower by a swap counterparty does not completely
offset, or equal the borrower’s variable rate payment to bondholders. This may result in positive or
negative basis differential. In order to minimize basis risk, OCTA selected a swap structure that pays a
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variable receiver rate based on a percentage of LIBOR in high interest rate environments where rate
compression should be less of an issue, but pays a SIFMA receiver rate in low interest rate environments,
where rate compression has historically been at its highest.

Under the parity swap agreements, OCTA pays the counterparties a fixed payment of 4.06227% and the
counterparties pay OCTA a floating rate equal to 67% of LIBOR if LIBOR is equal to or greater than
4.0% or the SIFMA Index if LIBOR is less than 4.0%. As of June 30, 2010, OCTA experienced $12,013
in cumulative negative basis differential since inception of the swap program in November 2003. This
negative amount has been funded with toll road revenues.

TERMINATION RISK

Termination risk is the risk that an event occurs that causes a termination of the parity swaps and the
OCTA would incur replacement costs. As of the June 30, 2010 valuation, there had not been a
termination event.

SWAP PAYMENTS AND ASSOCIATED DEBT

As of June 30, 2010, debt service requirements of OCTA’s outstanding variable-rate debt and net swap
payments, assuming current interest rates remain unchanged throughout the term, are as follows:

$75,000 SERIES 2003-B-1 (1) $25,000 SERIES-B-2 (1)
INTEREST INTEREST

YEAR RATE RATE

ENDING SWAP SWAP

JUNE 30 PRINCIPAL INTEREST NET PRINCIPAL INTEREST NET TOTAL
2011 $ - $ 2,888 $ 2,814 $ - $ 962 $ 938 $ 7,602
2012 - 2,888 2,814 - 962 938 7,602
2013 - 2,888 2,814 - 962 938 7,602
2014 - 2,887 2,814 - 963 938 7,602
2015 - 2,887 2,814 - 963 938 7,602
2016-2020 - 14,437 14,071 - 4,813 4,690 38,011
2021-2025 25,005 12,302 11,990 8,335 4,101 3,997 65,730
2026-2030 40,715 5,257 5,124 13,575 1,752 1,707 68,130
2031 9,280 54 53 3,090 18 18 12,513

$ 75,000 $ 46,488 $ 45,308 $ 25,000 $ 15,496 $ 15102 $ 222,394

(1) Assumes an interest rate swap rate of 4.06227% per annum for the Series 2003-B-1 Bonds and the
Series-B-2 Bonds based on the Series 2003-B Parity Swap Agreements.
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As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary. The OCIP rate on
the 2003-B-1 and B-2 debt was 3.85% on June 30, 2010. As part of the swap agreements, OCTA receives
the SIFMA Index which amounted to 0.31% on June 30, 2010.

LONG-TERM DEBT
SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS

During fiscal years 1993, 1994 and 1998, LTA issued sales tax revenue bonds to assist in the financing of
various highway, local street and road and transit projects in Orange County. The Measure M sales tax is
the source of revenue for repaying this debt.

In August 1997, LTA issued $57,730 in Measure M Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds to advance
refund $57,600 of outstanding 1992 Second Senior Bonds (1992 Second Senior Series). The net
proceeds plus additional 1992 Second Senior Series sinking fund monies and release of funds from the
Bond Reserve Fund were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in
an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1992
Second Senior Series. In February 2002, the refunded bonds, which have been eliminated in the
financial statements, were paid.

In March 1998, LTA issued $20,270 in Measure M Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds to advance
refund $19,885 of outstanding 1992 First Senior Bonds (1992 First Senior Series). In addition to the
refunding, LTA also issued $213,985 (1998 Second Senior Series) in revenue bonds to continue with the
financing of Measure M related projects. The net proceeds plus additional 1992 First Senior Series
sinking fund monies were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited
in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1992
First Senior Series. In February 2002, the refunded bonds, which have been eliminated in the financial
statements, were paid.

In October 2001, LTA issued $67,335 in Measure M Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds to advance
refund $18,805 of the 1992 First Senior Bonds and $48,430 of the 1994 Second Senior Bonds. The
proceeds plus additional sinking fund monies were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments on the 1992 and 1994 bonds. The amount of the refunded bonds, which have been eliminated
in the financial statements, were paid February 17, 2004.
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A summary of the bonds outstanding is as follows:

1992 1992 1994 1997 1998 2001
1" SENIOR 2"° SENIOR 2"° SENIOR 2"° SENIOR 2"° SENIOR 2"° SENIOR
BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND BOND
Issuance Date 08/21/92 09/18/92 02/24/94 08/15/97 03/15/98 10/15/01
Original issue
amount $ 350,000 $ 190,000 $ 200,000 $ 57,730 $ 213,985 $ 48,430
Original issue
(discount)/
premium 2,612) (727 (165) 3,800 11,687 3,510
NET BOND
PROCEEDS $ 347,388 $189,273 $ 199,835 $ 61,530 $ 225,672 $ 51,940
Issuance costs $ 3,508 $ 2,323 $ 2,535 $ 780 $ 2,194 $ 590
Reserve
requirements $ - % 14,416 $ 11,406 $ 2,002 $ 24,581 $ 6,263
Cash reserve
balance $ - $14,772 $12,090 $ 2,051 $24,613 $ 6,271
Interest Rate 2.8%-12.23%  2.9%-12.03%  2.8%-12.55% 3.8%-5.7% 3.9%-5.5% 4.0-5.0%
Effective blended
rate 6.0% 5.96% 4.94% 5.06% 4.45% 3.70%
Annual principal
payment $27,200 $ $ - $15,445 $23,300 $16,850
Maturity 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011
Bonds
outstanding $27,200 $ $ - $15,445 $23,300 $16,850
Less deferred loss
on refunding - - 337
Plus unamortized
premium - - 351
TOTAL $27,200 $ $ - $15,445 $23,300 $16,864

Annual debt service requirements on the sales tax revenue bonds as of June 30, 2010, are as follows:

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2011 $ 82,795 $ 4,627
TOTAL $82,795 $4,627

TAXABLE SENIOR SECURED BONDS

On January 3, 2003, as part of the purchase agreement, the 91 Express Lanes Fund assumed $135,000 of
taxable 7.63% Senior Secured Bonds. On November 12, 2003, the taxable bonds were refunded as noted
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below. As required by the indenture, OCTA paid $26,428 Yield Maintenance Premium which is deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds.

TOLL ROAD REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS

On November 12, 2003, OCTA issued $195,265 in Toll Road Revenue Refunding Bonds (91 Express
Lanes) Series 2003-A, Series 2003-B-1 and Series 2003-B-2 to refinance the $135,000 taxable 7.63%
Senior Secured Bonds and to reimburse the OCTA for a portion of its prior payment of the costs of
acquiring the Toll Road and certain other property and interests associated with the Toll Road. The
Series 2003-A Bonds were issued as fixed rate bonds, the Series 2003-B-1 Bonds and the Series 2003-B-2

Bonds were issued as adjustable rate bonds.

On November 24, 2008, OCTA remarketed $100,000 in Toll Road Revenue Refunding Bonds (91
Express Lanes) Series 2003-B-1 and Series 2003-B-2 (collectively the “Series 2003-B Bonds”) that were
issued on November 12, 2003. The Series 2003-B Bonds were originally issued as adjustable rate bonds.
In connection with the mandatory tender of the Series 2003-B Bonds required by the Indenture, the
interest rate was converted to a Long Term Interest Rate equal to the OCIP Rate, or 3.85%. The Series
2003-B Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for repurchase by or for the benefit of OCTA on
December 19, 2010.

A summary of the terms of the Toll Road Revenue Refunding Bonds is as follows:

Issuance date 11/12/03
Original issue amount $ 195,265
Cash reserve requirements $ 38,020
Cash reserve balance $ 38,854
Interest rate 2.0% to
5.375% *

Maturity December
2030

Principal payment date August 15
Current balance $170,425
Unamortized premium $5,156
Deferred amount on refunding ($19,310)

* 2003 Series B-1 and B-2 are issued as variable rate revenue bonds with a floating-to-fixed interest rate

swap transaction in place. See note 11 for interest rate swap description. Both the $75,000 Series B-1
bonds and the $25,000 Series B-2 bonds were swapped to a fixed rate of 4.06227%.
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Annual debt service requirements on the tax-exempt bonds as of June 30, 2010, are as follows:

YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
2011 $ 4,740 $ 7,517 $ 12,257
2012 4,980 1,274 12,254
2013 5,245 7,009 12,254
2014 5,525 6,730 12,255
2015 5,815 6,439 12,254
2016-2020 34,055 27,222 61,277
2021-2025 43,405 18,154 61,559
20262030 54,290 8,222 62,512
2031 12,370 265 12,635
TOTAL $170,425 $88,832 $259,257

The interest rate used to determine the future annual debt service requirements for the variable rate

bonds was 4.06227% at June 30, 2010.

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Longterm liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

DUE
WITHIN
BEGINNING ENDING ONE
BALANCE ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS BALANCE YEAR
Governmental activities:
Sales tax revenue bonds $ 161,200 $ $ 78,405 $ 82,795 $ 82,795
Unamortized deferred loss on
refunding (673) (336) (337) -
Unamortized premium 702 - 351 351 -
Compensated absences 2,497 3,264 3,340 2,421 2,376
Other post employment benefits 9 45 - 54 -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES $163,735 $ 3,309 $ 81,760 $85,284 $85,171
Business-type activities:
Tax-exempt bonds 174,940 4515 170,425 4,740
Capital lease 9,779 3,417 6,362 3,560
Unamortized premium 5,408 252 5,156 -
Unamortized deferred amount
on refunding (20,377) - (1,067) (19,310) -
Claims payable 20,387 4,179 8,548 16,018 3,341
Compensated absences 6,585 11,011 11,329 6,267 6,157
Other post employment benefits 36 - 5 31 -
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES $196,758 $ 15,190 $ 26,999 $184,949 $17,798
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Compensated absences will be paid from the general fund for governmental activities and from the
OCTD and OCTAP enterprise funds for business-type activities.

ARBITRAGE REBATE

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 instituted certain arbitrage restrictions with respect to the issuance of tax
exempt bonds after August 31, 1986. In general, arbitrage regulations deal with the investment of all tax-
exempt bond proceeds at an interest yield greater than the interest yield paid to bondholders. Failure to
follow the arbitrage regulations could result in all interest paid to bondholders retroactively rendered
taxable.

In accordance with the arbitrage regulations, if excess earnings were calculated, 90% of the amount
calculated would be due to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) at the end of each five year period. The
remaining 10% would be recorded as a liability and paid after all bonds had been redeemed. During the
current year, no excess earnings were calculated, therefore no payments were made.

PLEDGED REVENUE

OCTA has a number of debt issuances outstanding that are repaid and secured by the pledging of certain
revenues. The amount and term of the remainder of these commitments are indicated in the summary of
bonds outstanding tables. The purposes for which the proceeds of the related debt issuances were utilized
are disclosed in the debt descriptions. For the year ended June 30, 2010, the 91 Express Lanes paid an
additional $3,780 in interest costs associated with the downgrading of Ambac Insurance Corporation and
the bankruptcy of Lehman Brothers Holding Inc. Debt service payments as a percentage of the pledged
gross revenue, less certain expenses as required by the debt agreement, for the year ended June 30, 2010,
are indicated in the table below:

DEBT SERVICE

ANNUAL ANNUAL AS A

DESCRIPTION OF AMOUNT OF DEBT PERCENTAGE

PLEDGED REVENUE PLEDGED SERVICE OF PLEDGED

REVENUE PAYMENTS REVENUE

Measure M Sales Tax $ 182,471 $ 87,422 47.9%
91 Express Lanes Toll Road

Revenue $ 44,665 $ 16,038 35.9%

PENSION PLANS

Plan Description - OCTA contributes to two retirement plans, the Public Employees' Retirement System
(PERS) of the State of California and the Orange County Employees Retirement System (OCERS). PERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual costofliving adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries.

PERS is a costsharing multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system that acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of
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California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and agency
ordinance. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the cost sharing plans administered by PERS. A copy of PERS’
annual financial report may be obtained from its executive office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.

Full time employees of the OCTA, except for those former employees of the OCTC who elected to
participate in PERS, participate in OCERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan.

OCERS provides for retirement, death, disability and cost-ofliving benefits and is subject to provisions of
the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 and other applicable statutes. OCERS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the cost sharing plans administered by OCERS. Copies of OCERS’ annual financial report may be
obtained from its executive office: 2223 Wellington Avenue, Santa Ana, CA 92701.

Funding Policy (PERS) - Beginning in 1991, OCTA elected to contribute 7% of gross salary to PERS for
all participating employees employed as of June 30, 1991. The election is subject to renewal every year.
OCTA is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. OCTA’s actuarially determined

contribution requirement was 0.0% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements are
established and may be amended by PERS.

Funding Policy (OCERS) - Plan members contribute between 4.23% to 11.85% to the plan. OCTA’s
actuarially determined contribution requirement was 15.82% of total covered payroll.

Annual Pension Cost (PERS) - Annual required contributions for fiscal year 2009-10 were based on the
June 30, 2007 actuarial valuation, the latest available from PERS. The actuarial assumptions included (a)
a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.75% per annum compounded
annually and an inflation factor of 3.0%; and (b) projected annual salary increases that vary by duration of
service and include a factor of 3.0% for inflation, .25% for annual production growth and various
amounts for merit according to longevity.

OCTA’s contributions to PERS were $0 for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008, and were
equal to the required contribution calculated by the PERS actuary for each year.

Annual Pension Cost (OCERS) - Annual required contributions for fiscal year 2010 were based on the
OCERS actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2007, in which the investment return assumption was
7.75%, and the inflation factor was 3.50%. The salary increase rate assumption varies by duration of
service between 4.50% and 11.50% for General members, which includes the inflation factor of 3.50%.
There are assumed to be no across the board salary increases.

OCTA’s contributions to OCERS for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were $15,877,
$17,473 and $15,236, respectively, and were equal to the required contribution calculated by the OCERS
actuary for each year.
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SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - On January 1, 1995, OCTA established the Additional Retiree Benefit Account (Plan).
The Plan is a singleemployer defined benefit retirement plan. The Plan is administered for OCTA
through OCERS. The Plan provides a supplemental retirement benefit to individuals age 50 and over
with at least 10 years OCTA. Employees deferring retirement more than 30 days from date of separation
from OCTA are not eligible.

The Plan provides a lifetime monthly annuity equal to $10 times the number of years of OCTA
continuous service prior to retirement with a maximum of $150 per month. The Plan requires no
employee contributions and has no termination, disability, or survivor benefits.

Funding Policy - OCTA’s funding policy is to fund annual required contribution as determined by the
Plan’s actuary.

Annual Pension Cost - The Plan’s Annual Pension Cost for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 is $883
which is equal to OCTA’s required and actual contributions.

THREE-YEAR TREND INFORMATION

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Actual Percentage Net Pension

Ending June 30 Cost Contribution Contribution Obligation
2010 $ 883 $ 883 100% $0
2009 $ 786 $ 786 100% $0
2008 $ 786 $ 786 100% $0

The following information describes the calculation methodology:

®  The actuarial liabilities and assets are valued as of January 1, 2010.

®  The actuarial funding method used is the entry age normal cost method. Under this method, the
plan’s normal cost is developed as a level percent of payroll throughout the participants’ working
lifetime.

The unfunded actuarial liability is the difference between the actuarial accrued liability and Plan assets.
This difference is amortized as a level percent of payroll over an initial 20-year closed period. The
remaining amortization period at January 1, 2010, is 18 years.

The following is a summary of January 1, 2010 actuarial assumptions:

= Interest rate: 7.75%

= Mortality: OCERS assumptions
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®  Termination: Sample rates in the first five years of service are:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years of
Service Rate
0 17.0%
1 9.0%
2 8.0%
3 7.0%
4 6.0%

Sample rates with 5+ years of service are:

Age Rate Age Rate
25 4.0% 45 3.4%
30 4.0% 50 2.7%
35 4.0% 55 1.9%
40 4.0% 60 0.6%

= Aggregate Payroll Increases:  3.5%

=  Retirement Rates: Same as OCERS assumption. Sample rates are:

Age Rate
50 3%
55 4%
60 11%
65 25%
70 100%

The actuarial asset value is the same as market asset value.

Funding Status and Funding Progress - As of January 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date,
the Plan was 65% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $13,746 and the actuarial value
of assets was $8,947 resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $4,799. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was $101,596 and the ratio of the UAAL
to the covered payroll was 4.7% percent.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Actuarial UAAL as a

Valuation Actuarial Actuarial Annual Percentage
Date Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

January 1 Assets Liability AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
2010 $8,947 $13,746 $4,799 65% $101,596 4.1%
2009 $8,013 $11,545 $3,532 69% $ 98,063 3.6%
2008 $8,013 $11,545 $3,532 69% $ 98,063 3.6%
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(14) OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITs (OPEB)

Plan Description - OCTA sponsors and administers a single-employer defined-benefit postemployment
healthcare plan (Plan) to provide medical insurance benefits to eligible retired employees. Benefit

provisions are established and may be amended by the Board of Directors of OCTA. OCTA reports the
financial activity of the Plan in its basic financial statements. No separate benefit plan report is issued.

OCTA allows Unrepresented Administrative Employees and Transportation Communications
International Union Employees to continue participating in the group healthcare insurance program after
retirement until age 65 for retirees who retire directly from OCTA at a minimum of age 50 with at least
10 years of OCTA service. The retiree pays the full premium for retiree, spouse and dependents. OCTA
does not provide any cash subsidy towards retiree medical benefits.

Funding Policy - Because of the nature of the implied subsidy, OCTA funds the benefits on a pay-as-you-
go basis.

OCTA allows retirees to participate in the same medical plan as active employees at the same premium
rates. Because the rate is a “blended rate”, payments for the active employees include an implied subsidy
of what would normally be a higher rate for retirees if the retirees were in a stand-alone health plan.
GASB 45 requires that this implied subsidy be reclassified when reporting the contributions for retiree
medical costs.

For fiscal year 2009-10, OCTA contributed $32 in implied subsidy through the active healthcare
premiums:

TOTAL

Total Active Health Premiums $6,662
Reclassification for Implied Subsidy (32)
NET ACTIVE HEALTH PREMIUMS $6,630

Annual Other Postemployment Benefit Cost and Net Obligation - OCTA’s annual other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the Annual Required Contribution
of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a
period not to exceed thirty years.
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The following table shows the components of OCTA’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended June 30,
2010, the amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in OCTA’s net OPEB obligation.

ToTAL
Annual required contribution $71
Interest on net OPEB obligation 2
Adjustment to annual required
contribution 2)
Annual OPEB cost 71
Benefit payments made 32
Increase in net OPEB obligation 39
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 45
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $84

OCTA’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net
postemployment healthcare plan obligation for the year ended June 30, 2010 and the two preceding years
were as follows:

Percentage of

Annual
Year Annual OPEB Cost Net
Ended OPEB Cost Contributed OPEB Obligation
6/30/10 $71 45.0% $84
6/30/09 $60 65.0% $45
6/30/08 $57 57.9% $24

Funded Status - The June 30, 2010 funded status, based on the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation was:

Total
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $659
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 0
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $659
Funded Ratio (Actuarial value of plan assets/

AAL) 0%
Covered Payroll (active plan members) $38,764
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 1.7%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Annual Required Percentage
Year Ended June 30 Contribution Contributed
2010 $71 45.0%
2009 $60 65.0%
2008 $57 57.9%
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between employer and plan members to that point.

In the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), and
annual healthcare cost trend rates for medical of 9.6% (9.0% for Preferred Provider Organizations)
decreasing to 5% over eight years. Salary scale and demographic assumptions for withdrawal, mortality,
disability, and retirement rates were based on OCERS assumptions.

The UAAL is amortized over an initial 30-year closed period as a level percentage of payroll. The
remaining amortization period at January 1, 2010 is 28 years.

PURCHASE COMMITMENTS

OCTA has various longterm outstanding contracts that extend over several years and rely on future years’
revenues. Total commitments at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

TOTAL UNENCUMBERED
PURCHASE RESERVE FOR PURCHASE
COMMITMENTS ENCUMBRANCES COMMITMENTS

Governmental Funds:
General $ 149,638 $ 6,296 $ 143,342
LTA 649,611 68,481 581,130
LTF 689 - 689
CURE 23,043 314 22,729
Nonmajor governmental 39,459 14,089 25,370
Total Governmental Funds 862,440 89,180 773,260

Proprietary Funds:

OCTD 184,726 30,130 154,596
91 Express Lanes 13,339 1,976 11,363
Nonmajor proprietary 2,782 - 2,782
Internal Service 4,529 125 4,404
Total Proprietary Funds 205,376 32,231 173,145
TOTAL $ 1,067,816 $ 121,411 $ 946,405

The majority of the contracts relate to the expansion of Orange County's freeway and road systems,
railroad grade crossing enhancements, expansion of commuter rail service and the purchase of transit
vehicles.
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(I6) OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
LITIGATION

OCTA is a defendant in various legal actions. Management believes that the ultimate resolution of these
actions will not have a significant effect on OCTA's financial position or changes in financial position.

METROLINK EVENT

On September 12, 2008, a Metrolink commuter train collided with a freight train in Chatsworth. The
National Transportation Safety Board determined that the probable cause of the collision was the failure
of the Metrolink engineer to observe and appropriately respond to the red signal aspect at Control Point
Topanga. Upon completion of the safety review process, the independent Rail Safety Peer Review Panel
developed an Enhanced Safety Action Plan with recommendations on eight key issues identified by the
Panel. Recently, an interpleader was approved capping the Metrolink/Connex liability at $200,000.
However, a bill has been presented to the state legislature capping such events at $500,000. At this time,
there is no financial impact to OCTA.

FEDERAL GRANTS

OCTA receives federal grants for capital projects and other reimbursable activities which are subject to
audit by the grantor agency. Although the outcome of any such audits cannot be predicted, it is
management’s opinion that these audits would not have a material effect on OCTA’s financial position or
results of operations.

LEASE COMMITMENTS
OPERATING LEASES

OCTA is committed under various leases for building, office space, a Compressed Natural Gas (CNG)
Fueling Facility, non-revenue vehicles and tires for revenue vehicles. These leases are considered for
accounting purposes to be operating leases. The lease for OCTA’s administrative headquarters in Orange
was originally for fifteen years beginning in September 1993, but was amended extending the lease term

to April 30, 2018. Lease expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2010 amounted to $8,616.

Future minimum payments for these leases are as follows:

Fiscal year ending

2011 $ 6,472
2012 6,277
2013 6,061
2014 6,155
2015 5,931
2016-2018 12,031
TOTAL $ 42,927
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CAPITAL LEASES

OCTA is also committed under multiple leases for design and construction of CNG Fueling Facilities
that are considered capital leases. As of June 30, 2010, three facilities have been completed at a cost of
$18,173 and are included in building and improvements. The terms of the leases are for five years
commencing July 21, 2006 for the first lease and October 30, 2007 for the other two leases.

The present value of net minimum payments for these leases is as follows:

Fiscal year ending

2011 $ 3,766
2012 2,310
2013 571
Total minimum lease payments 6,653
Less: interest costs (291)
PRESENT VALUE OF NET MINIMUM

LEASE PAYMENTS $ 6,362

JOINT VENTURE

OCTA is one of five members of the Southern California Regional Rail Authority (SCRRA), a joint
powers authority created in 1992. The SCRRA’s board consists of one member from the Ventura
County Transit Commission (VCTC); two each from OCTA, the San Bernardino Associated
Governments (SANBAG) and the Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC); and four
members from the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA). SCRRA is
responsible for maintaining and operating a regional commuter rail system (Metrolink) in five southern
California counties. As a member of the agency, OCTA makes annual capital and operating
contributions for its prorata share of rail lines serving Orange County. OCTA expended $25,921 during
fiscal year 2009-10 for its share of Metrolink capital and operating costs. Separate financial statements are
prepared by, and available from, SCRRA, which is located at 700 N. Flower Street, 26th floor, Los
Angeles, CA 90017.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

In the prior fiscal year, revenues of $1,863 for the construction of the SR-22 freeway project were
recorded as revenue. However, the amount is considered retention and is not available for reimbursement
until February 2011. Therefore this revenue should have been recorded as deferred revenue in the prior
fiscal year as it is not available to finance current expenditures. This impacts the Government Fund
statements only as the revenues were earned in the previous fiscal year. Additionally, in the prior fiscal
year, $699 for the 1405 widening project was recorded as revenue. However, it was determined in the
current fiscal year that OCTA had not received the program supplement from Caltrans granting OCTA
the authority to seek reimbursement.
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During fiscal year 2009-10, OCTA implemented GASB 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative Instruments. It was determined that the payfixed interest rate swaps did not meet the criteria
for hedge effectiveness. Therefore, a prior period adjustment of $14,890 has been made to record the
accumulated negative changes in fair value of the swap.

During fiscal year 2009-10, it was determined when GASB 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Transactions, was implemented the information received was not clear as to when the
revenues were earned. In the prior fiscal year, $27,757 and $10,328 of sales tax revenue for LTA and LTF
respectively, was not accrued for at the end of the year.

The following is a summary of the effect of these adjustments:

Local 91 Express
Governmental LTA Transportation Business-type Lanes
Beginning balance, as
previously reported $654,071 $ 362,200 $ 7,373 $ 577,235 $ 55,942
Adjustment (SR-22
freeway project) - (1,863) - - -
Adjustment (GASB 53) - - - (14,890) (14,890)
Adjustment (Sales
Tax Revenue) 38,085 27,757 10,328 - -
Adjustment (I-405
widening project) (699) (699) - - -
BEGINNING BALANCE,
AS RESTATED $ 691,457 $ 387,395 $ 17,701 $ 562,345 $ 41,052

(19) EFFECT OF NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB STATEMENT No. 51

In June 2007, GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets.
This statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically excluded by its scope provisions be
classified as capital assets. OCTA has properly recorded all intangible assets as a capital asset.

GASB STATEMENT No. 53

In June 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instruments. This statement addresses the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of information
regarding derivative instruments entered into by state and local governments. OCTA has properly
recorded and disclosed derivative instruments. See note 11.
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GASB STATEMENT No. 54

In March 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions. The objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by
providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the
existing governmental fund type definition. This statement is effective for OCTA’s fiscal year ending June

30, 2011.

GASB STATEMENT No. 58

In December 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 58, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9
Bankruptcies. This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting guidance for governments
that have petitioned for protection from creditors by filing for bankruptcy under Chapter 9 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code. For fiscal year 2010, OCTA did not file for Chapter 9 bankruptcy.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

(thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Fines 160 $ 160 $ 119 $ (41)
Contributions from other agencies 9,925 9,925 4,196 (5,729)
Interest and investment income/(loss) 148 148 (112) (260)
Capital assistance grants 10,697 10,697 4,453 6,244)
Miscellaneous 165 165 171 6
TOTAL REVENUES 21,095 21,095 8,827 (12,268)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Salaries and benefits 36,555 36,699 35,649 1,050
Supplies and services 30,156 33,714 21,080 12,634
Interfund reimbursements (46,077) (46,077) (46,846) 769
Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies 41,327 40,488 26,604 13,884
Capital outlay 2,332 2,426 855 1,571
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 64,293 67,250 37,342 29,908
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (43,198) (46,155) (28,515) 17,640
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 34,800 34,800 29,339 (5,461)
Transfers out - (3,086) (3,086)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 5 5
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 34,800 34,800 26,258 (8,542)
Net change in fund balance (8,398) $ (11,355) $ 2,257) $ 9,098

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Sales tax revenue $ 234,745 $ 234,745 $ 221,855 $ (12,890)
Contributions from other agencies 8,250 8,250 31,269 23,019
Interest and investment income 10,012 10,012 12,219 2,207
Capital assistance grants 64,098 64,098 - (64,098)
Miscellaneous 2,379 2,379 3,117 738
TOTAL REVENUES 319,484 319,484 268,460 (51,024)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services 113,494 119,136 65,459 53,677
Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies 332,040 329,353 193,355 135,998
Capital outlay 271,025 270,962 54,302 216,660
Debt service:
Interest on longterm debt and
commercial paper 1,500 1,500 403 1,097
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 718,059 720,951 313,519 407,432
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (398,575) (401,467) (45,059) 356,408
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 15,050 15,050 6,524 (8,526)
Transfers out (103,016) (103,016) (89,602) 13,414
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (87,966) (87,966) (83,078) 4,888
Net change in fund balance $ (486,541) $ (489,433) $ (128,137) $ 361,296

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (BUDGETARY BAsSISs)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Sales tax revenue $ 89,642 $ 89,642 $ 80,177 $ (9,465)
Interest and investment income 115 115 42 (73)
TOTAL REVENUES 89,757 89,757 80,219 (9,538)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services 988 988 1,399 (411)
Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies 8,425 8,430 3,518 4,912
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,413 9,418 4,917 4,501
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 80,344 80,339 75,302 (5,037)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (85,558) (85,558) (73,572) 11,986
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (85,558) (85,558) (73,572) 11,986
Net change in fund balance $ 5,214) $ (5,219) $ 1,730 $ 6,949

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

COMMUTER URBAN RAIL ENDOWMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Fines $ 14 $ 14 $ 25 % 11
Interest and investment income 725 725 3,405 2,680
Federal capital assistance grants 2,720 2,720 2,720 -
Miscellaneous 919 919 549 (370)
TOTAL REVENUES 4,378 4,378 6,699 2,321
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services 25,617 25,595 18,964 0,631
Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies 14,596 17,899 10,825 7,074
Capital outlay 500 500 226 274
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 40,713 43,994 30,015 13,979
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (36,335) (39,616) (23,316) 16,300
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 2,701 2,701 1,126 (1,575)
Transfers out (2,197) 2,197 (5,636) (3,439)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 504 504 (4,510) (5,014)
Net change in fund balance $ (35,831) $ (39,112) $ 27,826) $ 11,286

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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2010 NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(1)

(THOUSANDS)

JUNE 30, 2010

BUDGETARY DATA

OCTA establishes accounting control through formal adoption of an annual operating budget for all
governmental funds. The operating budget is prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) except for multi-year contracts, for which the entire amount of the
contract is budgeted and encumbered in the year of execution. The adopted budget can be amended by
the Board to increase both appropriations and estimated revenues as unforeseen circumstances come to
management’s attention. Budgeted expenditure amounts represent original appropriations adjusted for
supplemental appropriations during the year. Division heads are authorized to approve appropriation
transfers within major objects. Major objects are defined as Salaries and Benefits, Supplies and Services,
and Capital Outlay. Supplies and Services includes Contributions to Other Local Agencies, Debt Service
and Transfers. Appropriation transfers between major objects require approval of the Board.
Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control, that is the level that expenditures cannot exceed
appropriations, for budgeted funds, is at the major object level for the budgeted governmental funds. A
Fourth Quarter Budget Status Report, June 2010 is available from the OCTA Finance and
Administration Division. With the exception of accounts which have been encumbered, appropriations
lapse at year end.

There were no excess of expenditures over appropriations for fiscal year 2009-10.
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2010 OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(THOUSANDS)

JUNE 30, 2010

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

ORANGE COUNTY UNIFIED TRANSPORTATION TRUST (OCUTT) - This fund is used to account for the
revenues received and expenditures made for disbursements to OCTA, California Department of
Transportation and cities within Orange County for various transportation projects. The source of revenue is
the interest earned by the general capital projects fund. Expenditures of moneys in this fund must be made in
accordance with provisions of the California Transportation Development Act (TDA).

SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES (SAFE) - This fund is used to account for revenues
received and expenditures made for the implementation and maintenance of the motorist emergency aid
system. Funding is provided from a one dollar per vehicle registration fee on vehicles registered in Orange
County. Expenditure of moneys in this fund must be made in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 14 of
the California Streets and Highways Code.

SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR ABANDONED VEHICLES (SAAV) - This fund is used to account for revenues
received and expenditures made for the removal of abandoned vehicles from streets and roads throughout
Orange County. The source of revenue is provided by a one dollar per vehicle registration fee on vehicles
registered in Orange County. Expenditure of moneys in this fund must be made in accordance with the
provisions of Section 22710 of the California Vehicle Code.

STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FUND (STAF) - This fund is used to account for revenues received and
expenditures made for OCTD transit operations and fare assistance for seniors and disabled persons. Funding
is provided by sales taxes on gasoline and use taxes on diesel fuel. Expenditure of these funds is governed by
the provisions of the TDA.

GAS TAX FUND - Beginning July 1, 1997, OCTA began receiving $23,000 in gas tax revenue from the
County of Orange. The revenues are restricted and must either be used for their designated purpose or
swapped with other Orange County government agencies which can utilize the revenues for their intended
purpose and in return provide OCTA with unrestricted revenues. OCTA carries the responsibility of annually
pursuing and securing the swapping of restricted revenues with unrestricted revenues from Orange County
government agencies.

MOBILE SOURCE AIR POLLUTION REDUCTION REVIEW COMMITTEE (MSRC) - This fund is used to
account for AB2766 funds received from the South Coast Air Quality Management District (AQMD). These
funds are used to reimburse for projects approved by the AQMD.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - This fund, formerly known as the Transit Development Reserve, is
used to account for transportation capital projects.

OCTD CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - This fund is used to account for transit capital projects.

RAIL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - This fund is used to account for the development of a lightrail transit
corridor within Orange County.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -

(thousands)

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue

June 30, 2010 OCUTT SAFE SAAV STAF Gas Tax MSRC Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 4,475 $ 5452 $ 2,939 $ - % 4,485 $ - 17,351
Receivables:
Interest 87 42 12 2 - - 143
Other - 9 - - - - 9
Due from other governments - 1,625 611 - - - 2,236
Advance to other funds 7,519 - - - - - 7,519
Other assets 4,100 49 - - - - 4,149
TOTAL ASSETS $ 16,181 $ 7,177 $ 3,562 $ 2% 4,485 $ - 31,407
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 5% 559 $ 1$ - % - % - 565
Due to other funds - - 31 - - - 31
Due to other governments - 66 580 - 3,942 - 4,588
Deferred revenue 298 48 - - - - 346
TOTAL LIABILITIES 303 673 612 - 3,942 - 5,530
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
Other assets 4,100 49 - - - - 4,149
Encumbrances - 388 6 - - - 394
Advances 7,519 - - - - - 7,519
Transportation programs - - - 2 543 - 545
Motorist services - 6,067 2,944 - - - 9,011
Unreserved (deficit), reported in:
Special revenue funds 4,259 - - - - - 4,259
Capital project funds - - - - p P p
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 15,878 6,504 2,950 2 543 - 25,877
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 16,181 $ 7177 $ 3,562 $ 2% 4,485 - 31,407
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2010

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, CONTINUED

(thousands)

Capital Projects
Total
Nonmajor
Rail Capital Governmental
June 30, 2010 General OCTD Project Total Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 9,672 $ 15 $ 108 $ 9,795 27,146
Receivables:
Interest - 55 55 198
Other - P 9
Due from other governments 46 - 46 2,282
Advance to other funds - - 7,519
Other assets - P 4,149
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,718 $ 15 $ 163 $ 9,896 41,303
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 52 % - 9 $ 52 617
Due to other funds - - 31
Due to other governments - - 4,588
Deferred revenue - - 346
TOTAL LIABILITIES 52 - 52 5,582
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
Other assets - - - 4,149
Encumbrances 12,936 759 13,695 14,089
Advances - - 7,519
Transportation programs - - 545
Motorist services - - 9,011
Unreserved (deficit), reported in:
Special revenue funds - - - 4,259
Capital project funds (3,270) (744) 163 (3,851) (3,851)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 9,666 15 163 9,844 35,721
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 9,718 $ 15 $ 163 $ 9,896 $ 41,303
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2010

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(thousands)

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Special Revenue
for the year ended June 30, 2010 OCUTT SAFE SAAV STAF Gas Tax MSRC Total
REVENUES:
Sales taxes $ $ - $ - $ 23973 % - $ $ 23,973
Gasoline taxes - - 23,000 23,000
Vehicle registration fees 2,496 2,497 - 4,993
Contributions from other agencies 3,048 - - 3,048
Interest and investment income 521 189 97 6 - 813
Capital assistance grants - - -
Miscellaneous 112 - - 112
TOTAL REVENUES 521 5,845 2,594 23,979 23,000 55,939
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 23 5,135 36 1 - 5,795
Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies 2,321 23,000 25,321
Capital outlay 31 - - 31
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 23 5,766 2,357 1 23,000 31,147
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 498 79 237 23,978 - 24,792
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 3,086 200 - - - - 3,286
Transfers out (390) (125) (24,426) - (200) (25,141)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 2,696 200 (125) (24,426) - (200) (21,855)
Net change in fund balances 3,194 279 112 (448) - (200) 2,937
Fund balances-beginning 12,684 6,225 2,838 450 543 200 22,940
FUND BALANCES-ENDING $ 15,878 $ 6,504 $ 2,950 $ 2% 543 $ $ 25,877
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, CONTINUED

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(thousands)

Capital Projects
Total
Nonmajor
Rail Capital Governmental
for the year ended June 30, 2010 General OCTD Project Total Funds
REVENUES:
Sales taxes $ - % $ - % 23,973
Gasoline taxes - - 23,000
Vehicle registration fees - - 4,993
Contributions from other agencies 432 - - 432 3,480
Interest and investment income - 17 17 830
Capital assistance grants 482 - - 482 482
Miscellaneous - - 112
TOTAL REVENUES 914 - 17 931 56,870
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 245 - 1 246 6,041
Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies - - - - 25,321
Capital outlay 1,048 - - 1,048 1,079
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,293 - 1 1,294 32,441
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (379) - 16 (363) 24,429
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 663 - - 663 3,949
Transfers out - (1,126) (1,126) (26,267)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) 663 - (1,126) (463) (22,318)
Net change in fund balances 284 - (1,110) (826) 2,111
Fund balances-beginning 9,382 15 1,273 10,670 33,610
FUND BALANCES-ENDING 9,666 $ 15 % 163 $ 9,844 $ 35,721
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY DEBT SERVICE FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Interest and investment income $ 2,203 $ 2,203 $ 783 $ (1,420)
TOTAL REVENUES 2,203 2,203 783 (1,420)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services 298 298 151 147
Debt service:
Principal payments on long-term debt 78,405 78,405 78,405
Interest on longterm debt and
commercial paper 9,000 9,000 9,018 (18)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 87,703 87,703 87,574 129
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (85,500) (85,500) (86,791) (1,291)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 87,405 87,405 87,428 23
Transfers out - - (5,241) (5,241)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 817,405 87,405 82,187 (5,218)
Net change in fund balance $ 1,905 $ 1,905 $ (4,604) $ (6,509)
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

ORANGE COUNTY UNIFIED TRANSPORTATION TRUST SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (BUDGETARY BAsISs)

(thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Interest and investment income $ 205 $ 205 $ 521 $ 316
TOTAL REVENUES 205 205 521 316
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services 11 11 23 (12)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11 11 23 (12)
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 194 194 498 304
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 3,086 3,086
Transfers out - (390) (390)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - 2,696 2,696
Net change in fund balance $ 194 $ 194 $ 3,194 $ 3,000
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (BUDGETARY BASsSIS)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Vehicle registration fees 2,598 $ 2,598 $ 2,496 $ (102)
Contributions from other agencies 3,085 3,085 3,048 37
Interest and investment income 86 86 189 103
Miscellaneous 30 30 112 82
TOTAL REVENUES 5,799 5,799 5,845 46
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services 7,033 7,033 5,135 1,298
Capital outlay 63 31 32
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,033 7,096 5,766 1,330
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,234) (1,297) 79 1,376
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 200 200
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) - 200 200
Net change in fund balance (1,234) $ (1,297 $ 279 $ 1,576
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2010

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR ABANDONED VEHICLES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (BUDGETARY BASsSIS)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Vehicle registration fees 2,588 $ 2,588 $ 2,497 $ 91)
Interest and investment income 50 50 97 47
TOTAL REVENUES 2,638 2,638 2,594 (44)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services 50 58 36 22
Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies 1,840 1,832 2,321 (489)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,890 1,890 2,357 467)
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 748 748 237 (511)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (133) (133) (125) 8
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES (133) (133) (125) 8
Net change in fund balance 615 $ 615 $ 112 % (503)
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Sales tax revenue 1% 23973 $ 23,973
Interest and investment income - 6 6
TOTAL REVENUES 1 23,979 23,979
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services - 1 (1)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 1 1)
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 1 23,978 23,978
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out - (24,426) (24,426)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES - (24,426) (24,426)
Net change in fund balance 1% 448) $ (448)
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GAs TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Gasoline tax revenue $ 23,000 $ 23,000 $ 23,000 $ -

TOTAL REVENUES 23,000 23,000 23,000 -

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Transportation:
Contributions to other local agencies 23,000 23,000 23,000 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 23,000 23,000 23,000 -
Net change in fund balance $ - 9 - $ - 9 -
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MSRC SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

(thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out - 9 (200) $ (200)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES - (200) (200)
Net change in fund balance -3 200) $ (200)
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Contributions from other agencies 489 $ 489 $ 432 $ (CY))
Interest 197 197 - (197)
Capital assistance grants - 482 482
TOTAL REVENUES 686 686 914 228
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services 322 322 245 11
Capital outlay 12,332 12,332 1,048 11,284
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,654 12,654 1,293 11,361
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (11,968) (11,968) (379) 11,589
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in - 663 663
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - 663 663
Net change in fund balance (11,968) $ (11,968) $ 284 $ 12,252
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (BUDGETARY BASsISs)

(thousands)

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services $ 3% 3% 3
Capital outlay 759 759 759
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 762 762 762
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (762) (762) 762
Net change in fund balance $ (762) $ (762) $ 762
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

RAIL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND (BUDGETARY BASIS)

(thousands)

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget
Actual Positive
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Interest and investment income $ 21 % 21 % 17 $ “4)
TOTAL REVENUES 21 21 17 )
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Supplies and services 26 26 1 25
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 26 26 1 25
Excess of revenues
over expenditures ) 5) 16 21
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out - (1,126) (1,126)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES - (1,126) (1,126)
Net change in fund balance $ 5)$ 5)$ (1,110) $ (1,105)
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2010 OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(THOUSANDS)

JUNE 30, 2010
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

BUs OPERATIONS FUND (BOF) - This fund was established by the Board in 1996 with moneys from
various OCTA accounts available for use in mass transit. The principal and interest earnings are intended to
partially subsidize the bus operations of OCTD through the 2010-11 fiscal year.

ORANGE COUNTY TAXICAB ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM (OCTAP) - This fund accounts for the taxicab
licensing and driver’s permit program. The sources of funding for the operations are the permit fees.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS - NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

(thousands)

Enterprise Funds

Total
Bus Nonmajor
June 30, 2010 Operations OCTAP Enterprise Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments 13,584 443 % 14,027
Receivables:
Interest 365 1 366
Due from other governments - 12 12
Prepaid retirement - 37 37
Total current assets 13,949 493 14,442
TOTAL ASSETS 13,949 493 14,442
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 6 $ 11
Accrued payroll and related items - 11 11
Unearned revenue - 2 2
Current portion of
long-term liabilities - 15 15
Total current liabilities 34 39
TOTAL LIABILITIES 34 39
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 13,944 459 14,403
TOTAL NET ASSETS 13,944 459 % 14,403
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

(thousands)

Enterprise Funds

Total
Bus Nonmajor
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Operations OCTAP Enterprise Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
Permit fees - 565 $ 565
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES - 565 565
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Wages, salaries and benefits - 232 232
Administrative services - 170 170
Other - 2 2
Professional services 26 105 131
General and administrative - 5 5
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 26 514 540
Operating income (loss) 26) 51 25
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Investment earnings 611 17 628
Other - 1 1
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 611 18 629
Income before contributions and transfers 585 69 654
Transfers in - 1 1
Transfers out (14,000) - (14,000)
Change in net assets (13,415) 70 (13,345)
Total net assets - beginning 27,359 389 27,748
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING 13,944 $ 459 $ 14,403
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CAsSH FLOWS - NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

(thousands)

Enterprise Funds

Total
Bus Nonmajor
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Operations OCTAP Enterprise Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users $ - $ 570 $ 570
Payments to suppliers (30) (109) (139)
Payments to employees - 237) 237
Payments for interfund services used - (170) (170)
Miscellaneous revenue received - 1 1
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (30) 55 25
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers from other funds - 1 1
Transfers to other funds (14,000) - (14,000)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES (14,000) 1 (13,999)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment earnings 678 17 695
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 678 17 695
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (13,352) 73 (13,279)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 26,936 370 27,306
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 13,584 $ 443 $ 14,027

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ 26) $ 51 % 25

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by (used for) operating activities:
Amortization of prepaid retirement - 34 34
Miscellaneous - 1 1

Change in assets and liabilities:

Other receivables - 17 17
Due from other governments - (12) (12)
Prepaid retirement - (€2)] (34
Accounts payable ) 5 1
Compensated absences - ®) ()
Due to other governments - Q) (2)
Total adjustments “4) 4 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 30)$ 55 % 25
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2010 OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(THOUSANDS)

JUNE 30, 2010

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

GENERAL LIABILITY - This fund is used to account for OCTA’s risk management activities in the areas of
public liability, property damage and automobile liability.

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION - This fund is used to account for OCTA’s risk management activities in the area
of workers’ compensation.
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

(thousands)

Total
General Workers' Internal Service
June 30, 2010 Liability Compensation Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments 26,215 $ 11,043 $ 37,258
Receivables:
Interest 149 73 222
Other 223 322 545
Due from other governments 1 1
Other assets 323 942 1,265
Total current assets 26,911 12,380 39,291
TOTAL ASSETS 26,911 12,380 39,291
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 72 431 503
Claims payable 1,766 1,575 3,341
Other liabilities - 103 103
Total current liabilities 1,838 2,109 3,947
Noncurrent liabilities:
Claims payable 3,753 8,924 12,677
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,753 8,924 12,677
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,591 11,033 16,624
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 21,320 1,347 22,667
TOTAL NET ASSETS 21,320 $ 1,347 $ 22,667
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

(thousands)

Total
General Workers' Internal Service
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Liability Compensation Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from interfund services provided $ 1,040 $ 5,082 $ 6,122
Payments to suppliers (1,533) (458) (1,991)
Payments to claimants (4,856) (5,203) (10,059)
Payments for interfund services used (112) (78) (190)
Miscellaneous revenue received 440 176 616
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (5,021) (481) (5,502)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers to other funds - (996) (996)
NET CASH USED FOR NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (996) (996)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment earnings 950 392 1,342
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 950 392 1,342
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,071) (1,085) (5,156)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 30,286 12,128 42,414
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 26,215 $ 11,043 $ 37,258
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss $ (1,009) $ 47 $ (1,480)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Insurance recoveries 440 176 616
Change in assets and liabilities:
Other receivables (53) (108) (161)
Other assets ) 61 55
Accounts payable (223) 60 (163)
Claims payable (4,170) (199) (4,369)
Total adjustments (4,012) (10) (4,022)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (5,021) $ 481) $ (5,502)
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

(thousands)

Total
General Workers' Internal Service
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Liability Compensation Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 1,040 $ 5,099 $ 6,139
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,040 5,099 6,139
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Administrative services 112 78 190
Other 37 93 130
Insurance claims and premiums 596 4,961 5,557
Professional services 1,304 438 1,742
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 2,049 5,570 7,619
Operating loss (1,009) 471) (1,480)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Investment earnings 917 385 1,302
Other 440 176 616
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 1,357 561 1,918
Income before contributions and transfers 348 90 438
Transfers out - (996) (996)
Change in net assets 348 (906) (558)
Total net assets - beginning 20,972 2,253 23,225
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 21,320 $ 1,347 $ 22,667
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2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

(thousands)

Total
General Workers' Internal Service
for the year ended June 30, 2010 Liability Compensation Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from interfund services provided $ 1,040 $ 5,082 $ 6,122
Payments to suppliers (1,533) (458) (1,991)
Payments to claimants (4,856) (5,203) (10,059)
Payments for interfund services used (112) (78) (190)
Miscellaneous revenue received 440 176 616
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (5,021) (481) (5,502)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers to other funds - (996) (996)
NET CASH USED FOR NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (996) (996)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment earnings 950 392 1,342
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 950 392 1,342
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,071) (1,085) (5,156)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 30,286 12,128 42,414
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 26,215 $ 11,043 $ 37,258
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss $ (1,009) $ 47 $ (1,480)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Insurance recoveries 440 176 616
Change in assets and liabilities:
Other receivables (53) (108) (161)
Other assets ) 61 55
Accounts payable (223) 60 (163)
Claims payable (4,170) (199) (4,369)
Total adjustments (4,012) (10) (4,022)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (5,021) $ 481) $ (5,502)
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2010 STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of OCTA’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about OCTA’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

FANANCIAL TTEIAS .ottt ettt ea e a s e e e e et et e st essssmssessesasesssessenssonsesnsesnsennsennes 104

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how OCTA’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

REVENUE CAPACITY ..ottt ettt ettt ettt et este e bt estestes s essasbe st eeseestassessassansenbaeseestessansassansensensenseasns 110

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess OCTA’s most significant
local revenue source, the sales tax.

DEbt CAPACIEY.c.vvivievietiiietiet ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt et stess s e st esses e st ess s e st essesessessesessessesesses s s essessesessess s essess s eseeseene 114

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of
OCTA’s current levels of outstanding debt and OCTA’’s ability to issue additional debt
in the future.

Demographic and Economic INformation............cvcveveiririirieiiieiieieiieieeitesesesesesssesesesesessssesesessesessssesesessesess 117

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which OCTA’s financial activities take place.

Operating INfOTMATION ........cvoiiviiiieiiieiet ettt ettt et ettt s e ets s stessesessesses e st essesessessesessessesessesssessessens 120

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in OCTA’s financial report relates to the services OCTA provides
and the activities it performs.

103



$0T

‘Josse .—NUMQNU e se @OﬁHOUUH ..HUOQ. U>Nﬁ— ﬁﬁSOJm uﬁ.&u UUU.HOHQ >§UU\¢ 0dSs Uﬁ—u 0o} Mkumﬁvh

$1500 JUSWIABRURW UOPONISUOD 10§ 7/,9¢21¢ JO Iusunsnipe porrad zouid e sapnpour 3qa(q Pa3e[RYy JO N ‘s19ssy [ende)) Ul Paisaau] SIBIANOY [BIUSWUINA0L) GOQ7 T84 Test]

L8C6ET'T $ 90€TETLT $ €6€L6T'T § ObS'CLST $ 60TSEHT ¢ €79607°T  § 065°8€6 $ 6LLOVS $ 1€0°¢TL $
7L6'€0¢ GLGObE 64651 9¢9'¢TT L6L'SS €9L°81 (007°7¢) 781 (875°L9)
¥I8'cTe SI8‘L¥¢ L99°9%¢ L95°L€6 179966 165°€99 £98°68¢ 690°18% SSH96€

165 TIS ¢ €I6Ths ¢ ¥ET'16h $ LECTI6 ¢ <8LT8L $ 697TL1S  $ L7608¢ $ 875°65¢ $ $OTb6E $
186726 ¢ SeT'LLS  § LOO'WLS $ T6TTILS  $ 780°6IS $ LI6'WIS  § SS1'8¢S ¢ ObeTSS § TITHTSS $
706°0L1 9¢L°061 976777 Y618k 861097 £88°6¥7 0€€eLT 671°97¢ LILbTE
61707 G6e61 4% 891°¢T 95087 1LL'6T w61 65¥°6T -

09F'1€E  $ PFILOE ¢ TELSEE $ 0£6°65T ¢ 8L80¢T $ €9T'6¥T ¢ €88THT $ TLL'861 $ $69°L7T $
008919 $ TLOHWSO $ 98€°€79 $ SPTTSOT  $ LTI9I6 $ 90L%489 $ Sek00r $ 6£4°887 $ 079°0L1 $
0L0°¢€T 6£8°6¥1 (FeH'€9) (86S+TT) (19¢+07) (071°1€D (0£6°50¢) (Ly6°LT8) (S¥T°T6¢)
$09°€0¢ €ob'87€ STETIES 66£YTS 185896 078°L£9 176996 0£9°66H S6H96€
TE€T08T ¢ G9L°6LT  § 70S°GST $ LOV'TS9  $ LO6°TSS $ 9008L7 $ ¥h0'6ET $ 961091 $ 014991 $
0107 6007 8007 1007 9007 $007 #0017 €007 7007

HGOWH.NUWWP

"1007 ‘T An[ poruswojduut sem ¢ gSVO

1SAON

Jusunteds Sunioday [EOURUL] PUR SURUNODY :90IN0G

§39ssE Jou Juswuraaog Arewnad TR0,
pamsaIun)
pawrnsoyg
IQSP Pa3E[R1 JO 39U ‘syasse [etded ul paisaau]

JUIWUILA08 ATeWIL]

§3955€ 19U san1AnOL adA-ssoursnq [eIo ],
papmsaun)
pasoinsay
1qOP PI3R[A1 JO 39U ‘s3asse [eardeo ur pajsaau]

:s9p1A1IOR 9dAy-ssoursng

$J95SE 39U SINIATIOR JUSWIUISA0S [e30],
pasnsaIun)
paptnsayg
1q9p Pa3e[a1 Jo 39U ‘syasse [eardeo ur pajsaau]

:SIIATIOR [BIUIWUIIAOL)

(spupsnoyl -3u13unodan fo sispq [PNLIIV)

SUVYHA T¥VDSI4 ANIN LSY ‘LNINOdWOD A€ SLASSY LAN

I 3TNA3AHDS

ALIMOHLNY NOILYLIOJAdSNYYHdL ALNNOD IODONVYHO oLOzE



S0T1

*s1e34 Tedsyy 1011d UI PIATRA $ISNG HNT PUB DN 03 PIIe[1 STUSWISINUIII JUEIZ 01 NP Afurewrtad ST INUAII SUONNJIIIUOD PUE s)Ueis [esrde]) Ut 3sed1d9p ()] (7 184 [edsyy Y ],
‘papraoid s301413s 10§ $351eYd 03 pasoddo se saINIPUAAXD JO UOBONPII B S UWMOYS §)S0D JOIITPUL JO UOHEIO[[E Y3 O3 INP 18 SINUARY WeIZ01] PUE sIsudxXy JUSWUIAOL) [BIUIL) UL SISBIIIP Y3 ‘6007 84 [edsy uf
‘suea ysuenyered pue sasnq OND [euomppe paseyoind (DO Pue suen[e)) 03 paridjsuen) sem 303foxd Aemadny 77-gS 9 ‘9007 Ul
*39sse Te3rded B 0) PIPOd U3 3AeY PINOYs Yorym ‘9suddxa uneiddo ue 03 papod ASnosuoird saImIpuadxs 77 S 03 pPase[a1 729/ 1¢$ 3o Jusunsnipe pouad 1o11d e sspnpout sormyrpuadxs weido1d A AN G007 1ed4 1edst]
*s1e34 1edsty 1011d UI PaATa031 303(01d TOBONIISUOD 77-S Y} 03 PIIEA1 SIUSWISINGWIAL Jueis 03 Inp Afrrewrrad ST INUAAI SUOHNLIIUOD pue syueid [earde)) Ul 3sed109p /(7 Fed4 [eds1} 3y [,
*100T 1894 [BIST} Ul S9A1IOWIOD0] PUE SIEBD [1B1 49U JO 3seyoind Y3 10§ JUIJOLIIN 03 SUONNIIU0d 03 INp Afrreuntid st s9suadxa [re1 19INWWOY) Ul ISBIIIP g7 PUE I5810UT )07 T84 [8d81} 3y [,
's309fo1d Jisurex) prdex 1910 O3 $IXINOSI 101IPAX PUe 303(01d JUITIANUIY) Y2 SPILMO] SII0J [[€ 58D O3 JJEIS PAAMIP preoq Y.I1DO Y2 ‘G007 *e4 [eosy uf
€007 ‘Arenue( ur paseyornd d1am soue ssardxy 16 YL
1007 ‘T Anf paruswopdut ses p¢ gSYO
(panuuo))) 1SAON]
Judunzeds Sunzoday [eroueur] pue SUNUNODY :0INOG

611997 $ $86'L0¢E $ €55'he $ T1€6'70¢€ $ 8ye'1€E€ $ S8L'b6E $ €0T'erT $ FET'61C $ 99¢'L7C $ sonuaadz wrexsord usmruisaos Arvewrnd rerof,
95¢°681 94004 $0997¢ $06'991 LEL'9ST £6LF9T S01°791 OP'HET 051091 sanuasd1 wrerdord sapmanoe adrssoursng [eso ],
81 88599 £69°69 8+6'S1 0sL'8 817'ST 016CC 15691 81849 suonnqIIuod pue syuels fended)
L6588 08 196°€S a4 SSS'ty 189t $60°6S 796'6S $95'c€ suonnqruuod pue ssueisd unedQ
€ET'L 0289 €659 €909 910°¢ 099% oLL'e 809°¢ 750'¢ SINANOE 1O
600°¢t soL'ey 9€T'9F 8¢8'6Y 8Tt 8656 16£7¢ 86¢+1 - PpeoAIoL
9LL'8Y %975 775°09 795°8¥ 8LI%S 9€97§ or6'LYy €r1'ob 91¢'6S INO1 PIXLL

1$901A138 10§ $3B1RYD)
:s9n1AnOR 3dAy-ssaursng

SThLL 6£6'L9 8+6'L11 L70'9¢T 117'SLT 766'67 86018 7L9'%8 91899 $9MU3A1 Wei301d SIIALOE [RIUSWUIA0S [BIO],
6LT°8 L¥L'0E W1%E PHeies 6F€°L01 G96%ST 18L'8¢ 8+<'Sh 0T¥'LT suonnqIIuod pue syuels fended)
S1089 760'9¢ 74N £96'T¢ €967 €97's¢ T4 4 €8ty 087‘e suonnqinuod pue syueid JunersdQ
800°T L96 (AR 088 €IL sel L6L ¥99 S6L SINANOE 1O

171 $ €T $ 605°LY ¢ ors'e $ L16'Le $ 6Th'6e $ 681°LE $ LL6'cE $ 1Teiee $ FUIWUIIAOS [eIIUID)

189014138 10§ $3318YD)
:SAMIANIOR [EIUSUIULIAOL)
SANNAATY WVUDOud

€oF'6eL $ T1LT'999 $ CI8L6T'T $ L09'TS9 $ S16'97S $ S91°CIS $ 919615 $ 660'68+ $ 0v9'9st $ sasuadxa JuswuIanog Arewnid [e3o,

786181 1+0'10¢ 885 b1¢ $79967 60687 971'987 190797 8Y6' YT 617661 sasuadxo sananoe adk-sssursnq [el0],
443 667 ¢k 99¢ 1.2 Sk 204 11¢ 9 UONENSITUNWPE qedIXe],
cILce Y778 GLe'se 0k €69'c¢ 988°¢¢ 805°¢c¢ GLS9T - peoror,
666'TH 086'L¢ 1€9's¢ 70087 $87'8C 8567 G€6'8C L95'€T L6Y'61 NsuenEIR]
975017 85 PTT 16T'6¥T 178'€€T 091°¢77 1£0°077 GLE'66T S6Y'H81 09%°GLT amo1 paxt]

:s9n1AnOe 3dAy-ssaursng

188°1SH 0£7'49¢ STT'€88 786'65¢ 905 T+ 65¥'97C 666157 161497 174197 $35URAXD SINIANIOE [EJUSWUIAO3 [eI0],
- - - - 871 SIT'01 GGL'ST 766'LE A5N! [rex ueqin)
S6£°67 60027 68S1T 16L'6¥ W81 60507 €9%°01 ¥67°01 62011 JUSESiusve)
L6HL P18°L 699°L LTL9 1548 wL9°L 619°L 189'8 986'L SI01AI3S ISTIOIO
16870¢ $ 1€L7T 796'8hL PIEPLT ¥Is'eel 0L£801 SET'LYT 006'#€T GLL'9ST urexgoxd N 21nSEIN
8CTTIT $ 9.9'901 $ 600501 $ 091'6T1 $ 19608 ¢ LLL6L ¢ €859L $ +¥8TTL $ 61¢'+8 $ JUIWUIA03 [eIUI0)

:SAMIATIDR [BIUSUIUIAO0L)

0107 6007 8007 1007 9007 $007 #007 €007 7007 SASNAJXT

uﬁo»ﬂ—ﬁummm

(spuvsnoy3 -ut3unodop fo sispq [PNLIOD)

SHVAA TVDSId ANIN LSV ‘SLASSY LAN NI SADNVYHD

€ 3TNA3IHDS

ALIHOHLILNY NOILV1IYdOdSNVYHdL ALNNOD dAD9NVHO olLoze



901

“A[o3e1Edas TMOYS ST UONEIOT[E 35UIAXS JOIIIPUL 33 ‘6007 T84 Tedsy ur Suruuidag

‘suene)) 03 309[01d Aemas1) 77-4S SY3 JO I9JSURII IYI 03 NP SI SSPIATIIE [EIUSWUISAOL) SIISSY SN UT 95URYD) 3a1RESSU )7 1834 [edsH]

*A[9a1303ds91 ‘sasuadxo pue sUONNIIUOD pue sjueisd Funerddo ‘sIOIATIS 10§ $IZTBYD st P3310dat Mou 1k s39sse Terrded JO S[es UO SSO] PUuR SIXE) [31f I0JOJN ‘UOHBLISIZII SPIYIA

"T00T ‘T 4n[ paruswapdun sem ¢ gSYO
1S9JON]
Jusunreds Supiodsy [eoueul] pue SUPUNOIDY :30INOS

CIHPID  § cr6'ee $ (bI'OLE) ¢ TEEc'SET ¢ 98¢'7z ¢ €€0'TLT ¢ T8TOT ¢ SKLLIT  $ €l€'9T ¢ JuswuIdnog Arewd (30
#9L°6€) 877'¢ S1LTS 0177 (5€8°9) (Clraa)) #1'6) (1) 897°19 somanoe adiy-ssoutsng
(159'71) $ $89°0¢ $ (198'8Th) ¢ T1TI'9¢T E 4 A £ $ TLTH8T $ 966111 $ 618°L11 $ SI1°001 $ SIDIANOE [EIUSUILIAA0D)
SLASSY L3N NI 3D9NVYHD
697'85¢ $ 661°16¢ $ CITLLY $ L00'88t $ cscoty $ c14'68¢ $ <8T'6LE $ c1L08¢ $  Lbb'oes $ yuswruan03 Arewrpid [e10]
6¥9'68 $1£°001 869°0¥1 1€6'1¢1 L£87T1 $69‘801 7£8'06 S14'06 L7L'101 sopianoe adii-ssoursnq [e10 ],
8£0°GL c6v9L L£6*L0T 186701 1SH01 €LT'16 66L°6L 06999 (%7 sI9JSUBL],
207 ob¢ L0 s6y L6y 344 187 07 80¢ SMUIAII SNOIUE[ISIUL PO
- - - - - - - 1$ (66L°1) syasse [eanded jo 9[es Uo (SsOf) uren)
¥81Y 98171 9L¥1T LIT'81 LT1'8 9058 006 S17'91 017'7¢ SSUTUIES JUSUNSIAUT PAOLISAAU()
07701 S67'T1 8LTTT 8¢¢01 9L'6 ¢Ly'8 8L 6£T°L 0699 saxe) fazadorg
w@vnﬁrﬁ
:59n1An0R 9dA)-ssoursng
079897 $88'067 STH'9¢¢ 9L0'95¢ 9TLL67 812087 £64'887 867167 07L461 SODIANOE [RIUSWIUIAAOG [e10],
(8£0°62) (¢6t'9L) (LgsLon) (186°701) (15¥$01) (€LT'16) (66L°6L) (069°09) (81¢%L) sI9JSUBL],
8¢ uy LT 899 Y6t 01¢ 9b0°¢ yTt's 881 SMUIAII SNOIUE[ISIUL PO
- - - - - - - Aowﬁ.mv Amﬁv $)osse 13-.@&0 wO Uﬁww uo wwO}.—
STl 10S°1¢ T€€'6h Teeile £86'91 96¥07 €168 (4159 19%'ch SBUIUIED JUSUNSIAUT PRIOLISAIU[)
- - - - - - 000°€2 000°€2 000°€2 $9¥E3 [91} 1030
- - - - - - b8y 108 669 UORESISA PPN
§00'97¢ $ sop'gee $ 0s¢'c6e $ L90TTH $ 060'8¢ $ S81'IS¢E $ €58'8T¢ $ T110'70¢ $ soLLét $ soxe) $3[eg
w@vnﬁrﬁ
:SANTANOE [BIUIWIUIA0L)
SL3ASSY L3N NI SIDNVYHD ¥3HLQO ANV SANNIATY TYHINTD
(F89°TLY) $ (987°L5¢E) $ (097°¢S8) $ (9L9'6+e) $ (L96F6T) $ (08€'81T) $ (€1+'9LD) $ ($96'690) $ (FL0'670) §  esuadxa3oujuswiuianog Arewnd [el0]
(talas) (980°L6) (£86°L8) (TzL'6zn (7L9'8T1) (€¢6'121) (956'66) (98t°06) (69t€) sapianoe adki-ssoursng
(TLT'eke)  $ (007°09D) ¢ (LLT'S9L)  $ (SS6'61D)  $ (S67°99) $ ¢ose $ (LskoLT) ¢ (6LY'6LT)  $ (S09b6T) $ SODIANOE [EIUSUIUIAACD)
anuaadx weidoid /(3suadxa) 39N
L8TT¢ 160°0¢ - - - - - - - sanianoe adLr-ssaursng
(L81°T€) $ (160°9€) $ - - - - - - - SODIANOE [EIUSUILIAACH
{UOIEDO[E S3sUAAXD 30311pu]
0107 6007 8007 007 9007 007 $007 £007 7007
.-NOV—.&UW.-W

(spupsnoy3 -3u13unod0v fo sispq |PNIIIDV)

dINNILNOD ‘SHUVAA T1¥VISI4 ANIN LSV ‘SLASSY LAN NI SIDONVHD

2 3TNAIAHDOS

ITHOHLNY NOILY1HdOdSNYdl ALNNOD 3I3DNVYHO oLoO¢e



LOT

1007 ‘T Anf poruswardwr sem ¢ SO :SAON
Judunaeda Sunioday [eroueul] pue SURUNOIIY :30INOG

STE°908 $ 815179 $ 065889 $ #+8'669 $ $T5'STL $ 957'908 $  6£7°6¢L $ €1L°L89 88919 $ SPUN} [EIUSWIUIA03 IIYJO [[e [€I0],
(158°¢) (Z80'D) (9L6') 110'8 €677 79 0L€'9 (2489 LTFF spuny spoafoxd yende)
€59°9L 8%'76 €96 8IO'TTT TLSPET 614051 8¢6'091 SST'IST 0¢THT SPUDy INUAAM [er0dg
‘ur payodal ‘paarssarun)
cIseeh ¢ SIT'LES $ $+7°66S $ <18'9LS $ 199'88¢ $ 96569 $ T1¢6'TLS $ cre'ees 69L°0LF $ paatesay
SpunN, [EIUIWUIA0L) IYPQ [V
8LE'T $ S€9'% $ 8806 $ ¢L1'S $ 719'¢ $ T18'S $ $66'9 $ €508 8660 $ puny [e19U3 [eI0,
(8L£'9) (097°9) #SL'D) (T20'%h) (960°T) 6SL (681°T) LT¥'T 766'C paazsarun)
96L0T $ S68°TT ¢ T80T $ 5616 $ 80L%F $ 760's ¢ ¢81'g $ 979'¢ 900% $ paatesay
puny [eIdun)
0107 6007 8007 100 9007 <00 #0027 €007 7007
Jed) [edsLy

(Spupsnoy1-3u1lunoddp fo sisvq |Pnid0D parfipowm)

SHUVIA TVOSId ANIN LSV ‘SANNA TVLNIWNYIAOD ‘SADNVIVE ANNd

€ 3TNAIHDS

ALIHOHLNY NOILY1LHOJdSNVYY1L ALNNOD IDNVYHO Oloze



%9°L1

801

.—uv—u._POHn— $301A138 10§ mOMHdJU (o2 ﬂOmOQQO se mvaa-.ﬂvﬂo&nv JO UOondNPII € SB UMOYS $ISOD JOIIIPUL JO UONIBIO[[E Y3 0} Inp e mOHE.__uﬂvn—umm JUSWIUIIAOS JBI9USL) PUE SIIAISS 10} mUwHNJU UL 3SEI109p 933 ,GOON 1894 Tedsy up

‘SIATIOWOD0] PUE SIBD [IBI A9U JO 3seydind Y3 10§ JUIONIA 01 SUONNGIIUOD PuE
‘s309{o1d peo1 pue 399135 ‘s309{01d WOIONIISUOD A1} UT I5BIIOUWT LR 0) Inp Aprewntad st ) 007 184 [80SY 10 $3T0UIFe [D0] 19YI0 O3 SUOHINGILIUOD UL ISLIIOUL Y|,
9007 IqUISAON Ul P3R[dwod Ajferyueisqns sem yorym 303f01d UonONIISUOd 77-YS Y3 03 Inp sem Ae[Ino [erded ul 31O 3Y3I 9007 PUE QT T84 [edsy [Ioq 104
*303f01d 77-gS 34010 USPIRD) Y3 10} YD 03 PIILDO[[e-31 31 SpPUNy WeiSo1] Jo19y UOnsSIFU0D) dyjer], Ul UOIIW 471¢ ‘G007 Fe4 [edsy uf
‘syueIg ddueISIsse [e3rded [e19Po) PaAIada1 Jey) §303f01d JUBOYIUSIS OU 1M YD ‘b ()07 T84 [edsy uf

"100T ‘T Anf paruswopdu seam ¢ gSYO
$SI0N

Jusunzeds Sunzoday eroueul] pue SURUNOIDY :92IN0G

%17 %97 %11 %<6 %167 %L 6T %6°LT %58 sormpuadxs [endeouou
30 9883u013d ® sE 2014138 342
(€86°8ST) $ (575'99) (6€€°€) $ (071'80) (927°06) $ +€8'59 $ L9¥08 $ 087TL $ +0€Te $ s9oUE[Rq PUN} UL SIFUEYD AN
(€€0'6L) (@6¥9L) (6L1°20T) (2£€6'L6) (LTT°L6) (6L1°06) 8etrL) (50849) (065°€L) (s98M) $901M08 BULOUERTY 1310 [EIOT,

- - - - - - - - (LSL°0L) JUI5E MOID$d PUOq PIPUNYII 03 JUdWAR]

- - - - - - - - G8F ‘1L spuoq Swpunja1 Jo spao1g
19 T w $66'T 69T°L €60'T 19€e 688'T - s1osse Tearded 3o ofes woxy spasdoIg
#0t*€07) (Z00'06T) (80L°817) #97°6L7) (560807) (166'677) #68°66T) (805°88T) (529°08T) INO S19)sUBL],
99¢'871 80G'€TT LOSTTT 8€€'GLT 60L°€0T 6L9'8€T §60°07T 818171 LS€'90T Ut s1ojsuel],

:(s3sn) SAOUNOS DNIDNVNI4 ¥IHLO
(056°€8) L9601 0F8‘c01 71869 1480 €10°96T S06'21 G80°LET #68°601 $AIMIPUIAX 1340
SIMNUIASI JO $$I0XF
808°608 89b'eTH SS0'T9F ¥+9'578 686'8LS 14817 $95°66¢ 89+'81¢ L0S'97¢ sormpuadxs [elo],
1246 678°€T 85981 €0€7 90€°6T STE'8T €96°0¢ LEEHE L9T'LE 13ded yerozowmod
Ppue 3qop wi3-3u0] UO ISA)UL
. . - €65 401983 BUIPUNJAI URAPY
SOF‘8L GeeGL 067°TL GTeL9 0zL'€9 S19'09 099°LS 00T'%S 69519 QP uN-3uo] uo syuswAed redpurig
19014198 3q9T
79599 999°7L 10248 F16°7€1 96+‘10€ S08'THT S¥L°0T 06587 1887L Aepno Tende)
€79'65T yebpLl T9LLST 781807 10286 L1506 oFe'e6 99¢48 98¢°L6 $I1OUR3E [ED0] 19710 03 SUCHNGIIUOD)
ruoneyrodsuer],
L6801 #81°68 GSTO€T 05€'66 99L°68 615901 99896 SL6'OTT 618°99 JUSWUIIA0F [EIIUID)
LS )
sA¥NLIANALXT
858TTH Seb'och 668696 954665 0€8'686 $58°€89 [ a4 £65'66¥ 10b‘Teh SINUAL [BIOT,
6¥6°c 98¢’e LLSY €67 €071 9501 €€8°'c 1.8°¢ 916 STOSURT[SHA
G69°L 86697 TETTT LGE9E 05T1L 6¥S°LT 6858 167°0¢ 8L9'¢T syueIs douelsisse [ende))
LOTLT 8TH1€ 8T'6¥ 1 £54rdd TLO'LT 79761 (4249 $L0's€ 06¢€‘er STOOUL JUIUNSIATL PUE 1$319)U]

- - 9Te'Ly €99°ct poeiLe wi'ee L80°LE $08‘ce 50867 $901A135 10 $IBIEYD)
SP6'8¢ 81801 $68°0C 10172 G656y TLSLTT 6€9TT 916'€T €70°LT SODUFE IO WOY SUCHNGIIUOD)
lad! LST L6T 161 0LT (7} 091 S81 681 souLL
€667 €61'G LET'S FIT'S 960°¢ 918% or8¥ 108°% 669% §99) UONENISIZAL I\
000°€T 000°¢Z 000°€T 000°¢Z 000°€T 000°¢Z 000°€T 000°¢Z 000°€T SIXE} JUL[OSED
600°97¢ $ Sop'see 05€°€6€ $ L90TTH 060°¢8¢ $ S8ITSE $ €c8'8T¢ $ T110T0¢ $ <0L'L6T $ SOXE} SI[ES

SaNNAATY
010¢ 600¢ 800¢ L00¢ 900¢ $00¢ ¥002 €002 00t
TBIX TeostL

(spuvsnoyi-Fu1lunoddp fo sispq |PnLoOY paifipow)

S¥VAA TVDSI4 ANIN LSV ‘SANN- TVLNIWNYIAOD ‘SADNVIVE ANN4 NI SIDNVHD

¥ 3TNA3IHDS

ALIHOHLNY NOILV1IHOdSNYYL1L ALNNOD dADNVYYHO OoOloze



601

‘s1e9h ﬁNUw.G HOMHQ ut ﬁg-.vuva mszn— OZ\.— .mv._HN OZU (o)} .vaHN.—UH mu._HOEOWH—.—&E-.UH jueis 0y Uzmv >—-H§HQ ST SANUIAII IINOL .mvoN.-..m ur UmNOHUUmv oﬂu ,OﬂON 1894 —Nu@@ uy

.ﬁoﬁsOHQ SIVIALIS HO-« mOMHN-.ﬁU o) vamOQQO se mOHE:\.Z.—UnﬁNU -.“O ._HO-.uuzvaH e se ._HbPOJm §)S00 uuva.m.mv.q_ MO ﬁOﬁNUOﬂ—N Oﬂu (o)} O—.—ﬁ ST uﬁ@EEgOO ﬂNHUA.—Uo ur UmNOHUUmv Oﬂu ,OOON 1894 —Nu@@ uy

*s1e94 Teosy 1011d Ul PaA1ed 109f01d TONRONNISUOD 77-S Y 03 PIIE[ SIUIWISINGWIN Jue1d 03 Inp Afrewnad st sonuasdz wrerdord JA AINSEIP UL 9SBAIOIP /(07 T84 [edsy Y [,

anuaaaz weigord e se anuasdx xe ] sen) parrodar 1D ‘G007 Fe4 [edosy ur Sutuuiseg
303fo1d 77-4S 9y 105 Apengy a1y UONESHIN BONSIFUOY) UL O[T ()¢ PIAII1 YD ‘9007 84 [eosy uf
303f01d 77§ 4010) WIPIBD) A 10§ YD ©F PIEOO[[e-91 919 SPUNy Wed01] JI[y UONSIFUOD) OPJel], Ul VO 47 1¢ ‘G007 184 [edsy uf
€007 ‘Arenue( u1 paseyoind d1om soue ssardxg 16 YL

"T00T ‘T An[ paruswaidunr sem ¢ gSVO

*839JON

Jusunzeda Sunioday e UeUL] PuUE SUNUNOIY :30INOG

6LL99T $ 686208 $ €65'he $  L1¥'90¢ $ 8v6'1cE $ seL'bee $ €0T'ehT $ FET'6IT $ 995'L7T $ Juswrurasod Arewnnd feroy,

96¢'681 9k0'0T 509977 $06'991 LEL'OST CFLPIT S0T1791 9P'bE1 051091 sonnoe adAi-ssousnq [eloy,
595 6kS 805 434 0ge ST ST 97T 67T UOWELSTUTWPE qedIXe],
8+0'ch soL‘sy 9T 8¢8‘6h 8Ty 865°6¢ 16€°7¢ 86EF1 - peoroL
1729'T1 16871 yTs'ct S05°01 She'6 orL‘6 SLS'9 $56'9 L17'9 JsuRnEIR]
74813 1$6'781 L7€'991 LT1'901 $78701 08T‘GTT $16721 $88711 FOCHST 9IN01 PIxL]

:san1anoe adky-ssaursng

CTH'LL 6£6'L9 8F6'LIT CIS'6ET T17'6L1 166677 86018 7L9'+8 91899 SIWIALIOE [EJUIWITIAA03 [€J0],
- - - - - LPT'S 111°8 1€6'87 - [rex ueqi)
Y61'c 070°¢ 10+'¢ 96897 ¥1s (399 ¥LS 139 19 Jrex 1Inuwor)
w0's VAR 9L5‘8 9818 L8g'S 9606 or1T 6617 $19°7 SI0IALIS ISTIOIOPY
117'¢E $€0'81 L9T'¢T 0$6°LT 0FL‘90T 65L'SHT $s€'0¢ SEe'sT 8£9'87 wei3oxd py nsedpy
9L8'7¢ $ SIL'8¢ $ +0LZ8 $ 1849 $ 0L579 $ LEb99 $ 616'6¢ $ TL9FE $ 9r0'se $ JUSWUIANO3 [BIIUL)

:SINTATIOR [RIUIUWIUIANA0L)

WYYD0¥d/NOILDONNI

0107 6007 8007 1007 9007 S007 #00T €007 7007
.—ﬁowdﬁow_m SHNNIATY WY¥DO0Ud

(spuvsnoyr -Furaunodov fo s1

spq (puiom)

SHUVEA TYDSId ANIN LSYT] - NWY¥DON¥J/NOILONNA A8 SANNIATY WYIDONd

S

31NAIHOS

ALIHOHLNY NOILYVLIYdOdSNYYL1L ALNNOD ASDNVYHO

Oloze



01T

VIDO 03 PAHSAIP SUII( ST INUIAJL Xe) SUTOsES AJuno)) [enuue Ul UOH[IW ¢7¢ ‘Uanial uf
NUAI XE) $3[es YL S¥LOO Wol Aunog) Sy 03 VO[T §¢¢ pIAIP
SIN3e[SISY] 33eIG BruIojeD) 93 ‘Aydniyueq 4461 AUnoy) s8uri() Y3 JO INSAI € SE ‘GET U (B)
1S9JON
Jueunreds(q Suproday [eourUl] PUE SURUNODDY :P0INOS

%8°L1 %00 %T 61 0107 - 1007
juey)
S00°6¥€ 000°¢T S00°97¢ 0107
S9¥‘86¢ 000°¢T S9F‘see 6007
0S€9TH 000°¢T 05€°¢6¢ 8007
L9OHHY 000°¢T L90T Y L00T
060°80% 000°¢T 060°68¢ 9007
€68°T6¢ 000°¢T £68°87¢ 6007
10'%2¢ 000°¢T 710°T0¢ +00T
§0L‘0ze 000°¢T S0L‘L6T €007
L18°97¢ 000°¢T L18°€0¢ 2007
$6£°967 000°€T $6£°CLT 1007
[eo], () durosen 98] 7Y SIS Tes X Tedshy

(spuvsnoyl -Futlunoddv fo s1sVq |PNLIIV)

SHVHA TTVYDSId NIL LSYT ‘SANNA TYLNIWNHIAOD ‘IDHUNOS A8 SANNIATY XV.L

9 3TNA3IHDS

ALIHOHLNY NOILVLIIdOJdSNYYJd1lL ALNNOD ASDNVYHO oOlLozg



158!

*A[uo 1931END PUodss pue 1511y AP $IUISALANY (®)
:$3JON]
uopezifenby Jo preogq 93elg BIUIOJR]) :90IN0G

%06°0 %06°0 %06°0 %050 %06°0 %050 %06°0 %060 %06°0 %060 9181 XE} SIES JOIIP OUBUIPI() PN SINSLIPN
G18°910°7Z § 678°909°¢S $ TLF'c6T'LS § LVLTOT'LS § 9+T°€90'SS § 650°T89TS § 990°LIS‘Ly § 9ST°698%+ $ FI€'c6shy § 09FToF'tt § [BI0L
FH6'6LT L 677°010'GT €TH9e€’sT LSLOFTST €8T TSHF1 TLT0THeT 61T1°0€5°CT 881°L09°C1 L¥6°T0t €T 71075€91 SI9PNO BP0 T
65779 $00'878°C 1€8896°T 6£5°186'C 671°8€6°T $€6°618°C 057°669°T 0ST°6T9°C 999°€L9C 65¥°679°C sa01a19s Teuos1ad pue ssouisng (O]
8€6°07¢ 696°9L5°C W6+00°C 616°601°1 00L‘9%0°T ¥I4+6 £60°608 €75°69L 09L6€L PIETHL BPO 6
€06'6L8°¢ 980°T€4°01 68569 11 6£6°06+ 1T 96T°¢8T‘TT 160°686°01 6+0°159°6 $0978t‘8 09L°LS6°L 675°8LE"L sapowomy Q
1884+0°T $ST0LET 8€6'86L°T 1¥L°670°¢ 980°000°¢ 765°056C 6¥7°08%°C $96°6L7°T 96T°L5T°T FILET0T [enorew Suipymg |
TWH'89¢T $£5°006°T L$6°6L0°T $61°707°C 059°697°C 918°GET‘T GGT'686°T €L6TTLT 686 105°T GGT198+T soouerjdde pue s3urysiuing SwWoy 9
€70'805°C 08t'SHT's €98967°S I#8°160°G 9L986L% 16L°SLF Y LTT6¥1% 83¢488°¢ $09°6FL'¢ 9TEGeS e SyuSWIYSI[qEIsS BURULIP pue Suney ¢
¥S1°616 €06'GHLT 10T°618‘T $8T18LT 8TTITLT SH1°€96°T 8TSPLST T19T6S°T PHTresT ¥rL°6051 §91038 POO 4
79L°18L 990°699‘¢ 1€6‘LyHY 1174159 6808709 LTE00L'S 719'680°S [AYATX% 2 4 660666 $96'611°G sa1038 Aeroadg ¢
097°656°T L8T¢6¥'S 018°068°G 16ThL'S LGELIF'G 6LO'S0T'S $L9°668 7€6'819% 188¢ Y 188becy SSIPUEYOISUL [BISUAL 7
656°CETT ¢ OIT'ObE'T $ 966°L1T°T ¢ OIFTST'T ¢ 768°790°C ¢ T88I88T ¢ O0TIL69T $ TIOGOST $ TLSOFT ¢ 99€H9¢T ¢ sa103s Jereddy |
®

6007 8007 L007 9007 5007 #0017 €007 7007 1007 000?

A spupwsnoyy v

SHVHA 8VANZITYD NI LSYT] ‘AMODIALYD A9 S3TYS F19VYXY.L

L ATNAIHDS

ALIMOHLNY NOILYLIOJAdSNYYHdL ALNNOD IODONVYHO oLOzE



(41!

"4 1 AqQ pareszoul S)e1 Xe) Isn pue $Ies 33els 3YI ‘6007 ‘T [Hdy 2andsygy (q

‘Me] >£ Xe] So[es 2Je3s Ul uondoNpal %ST0® Po°10] 19497 93k)s 93 Je m-.:QHSm punj jerousn) AN
QURUIPIO) N SINSLIN ) £4q papiaoid uonewIo Ul JA SINSLIN

$JON]

‘uonezienby jo preoq s3elg eruIoje)) Y3 Aq papraoid uonewiojul SgueI() JO AJUNOY) :$30IN0G

%ST'8 %0570 0107

@ %ST'8 %050 6007
%ST'L %0570 8007
%ST'L %0570 L0017
%ST'L %0570 9007
%ST'L %0570 S007
%ST'L %0570 +007
%ST'L %0570 €007
%ST'L %0570 70017

(e %00°L %050 1007
Jdue1 91e1 30911 Iea) IEpude)

Jo Ayuno) N SINSBIN

(spuvsnoyy )

SHVYIA ¥VANITVD NI L LSV ‘SALVY XV ] SITVS DNIddVYTHIAQO ANV LDOIHIQ

g 3TNA3AHDS

ALIHOHLNY NOILV1LIHOJdSNYd1L ALNNOD dADNVYHO oOlLozg



2010 ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE 9
PRINCIPAL TAXABLE SALES GENERATION BY CITY, CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

(thousands )

2008 1999
Percentage Percentage
City Taxable Sales Rank of Total Taxable Sales Rank of Total

Aliso Viejo $ 367,065 29 0.77% $ (a)
Anaheim 5,334,216 1 11.20% 3,904,417 1 11.05%
Brea 1,560,580 12 3.28% 1,204,386 11 3.41%
Buena Park 2,096,149 8 4.40% 1,032,538 13 2.92%
Costa Mesa 3,747,661 3 7.87% 2,825,793 4 7.99%
Cypress 1,108,449 16 2.33% 738,189 16 2.09%
Dana Point 403,080 28 0.85% 285,984 25 0.81%
Fountain Valley 954,440 18 2.00% 801,623 15 2.21%
Fullerton 1,624,647 11 3.41% 1,323,412 10 3.74%
Garden Grove 1,642,666 10 3.45% 1,349,763 9 3.82%
Huntington Beach 2,563,546 6 5.38% 2,043,221 6 5.78%
Irvine 4,372,094 2 9.18% 3,617,140 2 10.23%
La Habra 866,504 19 1.82% 505,571 21 1.43%
La Palma 542,030 22 1.14% 229,072 28 0.65%
Laguna Beach 361,487 30 0.76% 271,143 27 0.77%
Laguna Hills 535,009 23 1.12% 639,519 18 1.81%
Laguna Niguel 971,206 17 2.04% 603,807 19 1.71%
Laguna Woods 717,480 33 0.16% 56,700 31 0.16%
Lake Forest 1,202,402 15 2.52% 649,840 17 1.84%
Los Alamitos 239,256 32 0.50% 213,172 29 0.60%
Mission Viejo 1,405,375 13 2.95% 1,012,282 14 2.86%
Newport Beach 2,404,864 7 5.05% 1,641,782 7 4.64%
Orange 3,057,454 5 6.42% 2,128,630 5 6.02%
Placentia 456,705 26 0.96% 400,418 23 1.13%
Rancho Santa Margarita 506,124 25 1.06% (b)
San Clemente 596,284 21 1.25% 355,020 24 1.00%
San Juan Capistrano 607,306 20 1.27% 506,742 20 1.43%
Santa Ana 3,670,635 4 1.711% 3,492,306 3 9.88%
Seal Beach 413,065 27 0.87% 150,609 30 0.43%
Stanton 316,826 31 0.67% 278,084 26 0.79%
Tustin 1,772,441 9 3.72% 1,479,567 8 4.19%
Villa Park 14,726 34 0.03% 14,392 32 0.04%
Westminster 1,318,703 14 2.71% 1,166,518 12 3.30%
Yorba Linda 525,014 24 1.10% 426,371 22 1.21%

Total 47,635,489 100% 35,348,011 100%
Unincorporated Cities 5,971,340 - 5,018,079 -
Total Orange County $ 53,606,829 40,366,090

Source: California State Board of Equalization, www.boe.ca.gov

Notes:

(@) The City of Aliso Viejo was incorporated in July 2001 as Orange County's 34th city.

(b) The City of Rancho Santa Margarita was incorporated in January 2000 as Orange County's 33rd city.
Note: The most current data available is for 2008.
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FINANCE AND

ADMINISTRATION
DIVISION

Kenneth G. Phipps, Executive Director

For the fiscal year ended June 30,

2010

Orange County Transportation Authority
Orange County, California
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